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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A 5 i 2

Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2021 2020 Change
Bz BHE
—E--F —TTF
“A=+NB Z=ZA=tAhH
EFE EFE )
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT ARBEBEER
Profit and Loss Highlights AERBE
Revenue I &= 594.2 736.4 (19.3%)
Consolidated Profit/(Loss) Attributable AR R EHH A
to Owners of the Company A RF,/ (EE) 106.2 (30.5)
Basic Earnings/(Losses) per Share FREARRR,(FBE)
(RMB Cents) (ANEE D) 15.04 4.32)
Balance Sheet Highlights EEEEBERRE
Total Equity 1 % 1,007.9 961.7 4.8%
Net Cash Balances BT HE 754.9 508.6 48.4%
Net Assets Value per Share (RMB) SREEFEARET) 1.43 1.36 51%
Net Cash per Share (RMB) BhAFHEARETL) 1.07 0.72 48.6%
Other Key Ratios Hith X Ebx
Stock Turnover (Days) FERABXE(R) 317 369
Quick Ratio (Times) RE)IL K (%) 7.2 5.4
Gearing Ratio (%) BEBELE%) - —

Revenue

W ik

RMB million AR¥EE T

1,600

1,400

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

2019/20 2020/21
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

A R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Liao Jian Yu
Li Wing Yeung, Peter

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

James Ngai (Chairman)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Leung Wai Ki, George
Hui Chi Kwan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman)
Leung Wai Ki, George
Hui Chi Kwan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman)
Leung Wai Ki, George

Hui Chi Kwan

James Ngai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Hui Chi Kwan (Chairman)
Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Leung Wai Ki, George
James Ngai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yuen Chee Wing
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Wilkinson & Grist

6th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor
1063 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

CORPORATE INFORMATION
2wl EFE

FEERRIT
EELBEERITERAR
PEERET(EMNRDBRAR

¥ B ED

BEROKEE AN E AT

WX REMARF S E B EAD
BEAEFIR

KNFRE22E

R
SEERMT
BB HIR
T 105
KFANE6E

AMmPER
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

RREERBTEBIRERXRME

EAEH AR
K2 iE10635F
11110421106 =

R 2L E

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2w EFE

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 0738
Board Size: 2,000 Shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email address: ir@lesaunda.com.hk

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http:/www.lesaunda.com.hk

le saunda holdings Itd.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
BERCE R

FINANCIAL CALENDAR B B 1TEE

2020/21 Interim Results Announcement 27 October 2020
—EE/C—FHRBEEQM —T_TFE+A-T+tH
Payments of 2020/21 Interim Special Dividend 23 November 2020
KN/ Z—FHREERRE —E-TFE+—AZ+=H
2020/21 Annual Results Announcement 24 May 2021

R FRFEERM —E_-FRAA=-+WMA
Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting 7-12 July 2021

(both days inclusive)

TEmERhEPBELTFEULERRAFAS)(BEEEMAE) —E_—FtALRE+=H

Annual General Meeting 12 July 2021
BRBFRE T -FtHA+=H
Closure of Register of Members for Proposed 2020/21 Final 19-20 July 2021
Dividend and 2020/21 Final Special Dividend (both days
inclusive)
F?)J#@Hxﬁaﬁ}iZE.:E?%(LM&ZHX T/ —FREBAPKR —E—FLtA+NBEZ-TH
BERZEZE/—— EEHJ%%EI )(ﬁ?%EJ:ﬁEl)

Payment of Proposed 2020/21 Final Dividend and 2020/21 Final 29 July 2021
Special Dividend
’Egﬂﬂl_f/_ FEZAPRER-ZZT ——FF&FFRH —T-_—F+LA=-+NAH
| 75N
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
JBEACE R

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares should notify
the above registrar promptly of any change of their
address.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please email to
ir@lesaunda.com.hk or write to the Company at:

Le Saunda Holdings Limited
Suites 1104-1106,

11th Floor

1063 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3678 3200
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

le saunda holdings Itd.
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KEY MILESTONES
HERHEAL

APRmA2020

In the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”,
launched by the Employees Retraining Board of
Hong Kong, le saunda passed the assessments
and was renewed as a “Manpower Developer”
in recognition of le saunda’s outstanding
accomplishments in talent training and
development.

EEBREEBEI RHELNIERBAS ¥ STTE]
B le saunda @B EF R FMELEEIAL X
B AR Fle saundaM AA Fl BRI 1E
Hr ) SRR B o

JAN—He2021

le saunda holdings Itd.
KBHTAHHERBR DA

le saunda was established for 44 years,
aiming to “make a good pair of work shoes”
as its service goal. Elegance, generosity,
and intelligence are our DNA. As the market
changes, new elements are added to enrich
the brand. In January 2021, the le saunda
Y Collection was officially launched through
the online channels. With a design concept
of “Be Yourself”, the collection was mainly
casual wear style products, targeting the
young customer group.

le saunda B EImMEARES B44F - —
BN —8 EE I RREBEEZE - B -
AF - AERHEMAODNA - BEE WIS
WL REFENRIFTITE - K202141
AIEXBBAR FREH Hle saunda YR -
LATER S5 5 = Be yourselfl BRI ZE 2 - W
CTEEEHNABRBRFZENT K ARKH
BITREEZZNTE o
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JAN—He¢2021

On 20 January 2021, the Group was awarded
the “Top 100 Guangdong E-commerce
Enterprises” at the 2021 New Year Meeting
of the Guangdong Electronic Commerce
Industry Association. The Top 100 Guangdong
E-commerce Enterprises are assessed annually
to recognise sizable e-commerce companies
which have outstanding social influence, high
growth potential and strong sense of social
responsibilities.

2021F1H20R - AEBREREES T K HE
VM EFERELREIERE EFRHHK100
BEIHKREL ERAETHEBF L EI008FF
HE—X BERTERERNBEEHERK
HegEhEd AR EREHMEML
CETRMETRBELE -

The Group was honoured to be awarded the
“15 Years Plus Caring Company Logo”. Through
participating in charity and environmental
protection activities, charity donations and
community visits, the Group partnered with
different social service organisations to practice
corporate social responsibilities and to build a
sustainable society.

EEEEFCTERIBARBEIEZNE -£8
FEEB2MAREENRRITE - BELOIBE -
HEFRFE BT eRBEEBEE XEEE
TEMEEME BV ﬂTﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ °

le saunda holdings Itd. annual report 2021
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KEY MILESTONES
HERHFL

JAN—He2021

During the year, the Group passed the assessment of
the Quality Tourism Services (QTS) scheme implemented
by the Hong Kong Tourism Board and was renewed as
a QTS-accredited merchant. QTS-accredited merchants
were assessed against three criteria, namely price
transparency, clear product information and superb
customer service, showing that their products and service
are reliable and trustworthy to the customers.

AEEEERETRBEBIREZRBETHEE KRS
REFENTE UBEERBRARBIUZTENF - X¥E
FRE®MRGHBREABEE BERBMHMAEERS]
“ABRENTESERFENRE  ESHEEERE -

The Group participated in the “No Fakes Pledge” Scheme
again this year. The participating retail merchants of
the “No Fakes Pledge” Scheme have committed not to
sell or deal in counterfeit or pirated goods and to sell
only genuine goods, so as to gain the confidence of
consumers. In addition, participating merchants should
also impose discipline in protecting intellectual property
rights among company management and staff.

SEEE2HE[ERIES AR K ARHREE - 28[IE
REEARIFGFENHFAFE8  HETITEEXRETR
FERE R REMEZR/ERES - FHBEEROEY
RISHERRE  BRAAEEERE T REMBERE

le saunda holdings Itd. annual report 2021
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KEY MILESTONES
HERFL

FEB=He¢2021

le saunda is committed to creating a pleasant working
environment, fostering employees’ sense of belonging
and team spirit and inheriting the corporate culture of
working with heart. This year, le saunda participated in
the “Happiness-a-Work Promotion Scheme 2021” and
the Group was awarded as a “Happy Company” for the

5th consecutive year. We hope our staff love their jobs,
able to develop themselves and gain happiness and job
satisfaction at le saunda.

le saundaB W ABE LHERMMRN TIERE HEETH
FERMEEKGE S EEALBENTEE - AFE
le saunda£ B[ 590 T {E R | # E 5T 812021 » #E & FE5F
BROAIRALEE] BRI XREFE - iEle saunda®
NETHEEHZECHW I BEME  RIEKEI1RE
A R R |
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report on the results of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited (“Le Saunda” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 28 February 2021 (the “year under
review”).

2020 was a challenge-ridden year for the retail industry.
The COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”) wreaked havoc
over the globe during the year and even governments of
certain developed countries were at their wit's end over
Pandemic control. The increasing number of infections
across the world severely interrupted social activities and
dampened consumer sentiments, plunging the global
economy into recession.

During the first quarter of the year under review, the
Chinese government took stringent measures to contain
the Pandemic, which had a material adverse impact on
the operation of the Group’s brick-and-mortar stores in
China. As a successful brand in both China and Hong
Kong markets for over 40 years, Le Saunda promptly
made strategic adjustments to tackle the unprecedented
challenges posed by the Pandemic, including its efforts
to decisively cease the production in its Shunde factory
and turn entirely to external procurement, strictly control
the inventory level, and reallocate resources primarily
into brand management and product development and
design. In addition, the Board resolved to reduce the
remunerations of all directors by 25% for half a year from
March 2020, while all back-office departments followed
suit by actively reducing their daily expenses to retain as
much working capital as possible in case the Pandemic
might last for a long period. With the gradual containment
of the Pandemic and the steady recovery of economic
activities in China since the second quarter of the year
under review, the Group managed to retain its market
share by capitalising on the market’s upward momentum
through effective marketing strategies at the material
time, and maintained the brand’s leading position in
mid-to-high-end women’s footwear.

le saunda holdings Itd.
KB ZERBRAR  FH 2021

ER A E

HMERE:

AAZBERERESS(ESEINRARE
KB A ERER AR (HBH A KA
AANREMBAR(AEENEE=Z
T A+ N\BItHHBFE (R &E
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ERR N IZ40% F RO E m i - BB
8 B SR DA B R 1B S 2R S 4 AT I A0 Bk
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ERE RAEZEHINKE  BBEH
FEKE BERETERRmBEES
MREMMBER I EFERZEERE
EXA T TFE-FARF2% ¥ EF
BERYPMPIZEHEM T BEEERF
X BERBEEES  UHRBEARE
EHRHE BETERBEESXNEH
AR EESHALBEFEE _FTRIH
R KNEEKREEBAMOEHRE
EEMSOFTEE - RINERETHHMHE
Wi mER P SIELENRTHA -

annual report 2021

15




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE

The year-long Pandemic forced the entire retail industry
to change for survival. The Group accelerated the
development of new online channels and optimised the
interconnection between our online and offline services.
Although Le Saunda is experienced in e-commerce, the
e-commerce market has undergone significant changes
over the past few years from a dominant market by the
large e-commerce platforms to a competitive market
brimmed with a myriad of e-commerce operators of
varying sizes. While the emergence of new business
models and channels has led to a more fragmented
customer base, it also provides more touch points with
the customers. During the year under review, we actively
expanded our e-commerce channels to social platforms
to meet the younger generation’s shopping habit, in a bid
to tap into new customer base and broaden the exposure
of our brands. To this end, we launched the le saunda
Y collection on the online platforms featuring trendy and
casual styles to appeal to the young female customer
base.

Brick-and-mortar stores still play an important role in
Le Saunda. Over the past few years, the Group has
continued to integrate and optimise its physical store
network and operational structure in response to the
market situations. After years of effort, the Group’s overall
operational efficiency has significantly improved. As the
domestic economy has been recovering in an orderly
manner, and in anticipation of a series of consumption
stimulating measures to be brought by China’s new
economic plan, the Group will seek to open new physical
stores in different locations when market conditions allow.

Inventory control of finished goods and operational cost
control have always been a key focus of the Group.
During the year under review, we tightened our control on
new orders to improve inventory level, while at the same
time shortened the production cycle through external
procurement to speed up the launch of new products and
re-order of best-selling items. We also carried out targeted
approach to promptly reduce unnecessary operating costs
through structure optimisation, process streamlining and
the application of information technology. The decrease
in inventory turnover days and improvement in cost ratios
for the year demonstrated further enhancement in the
Group’s financial position.

le saunda holdings Itd.
KEBHAERBRAR  FIH 2021

EERE—F% HBTEEZTETE
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MHERXRFEeEFRENDEFE —RE
BYUEX ARERBTINTFERRELS
REZHERE RBUERMRELTESHE
i T'le saunda Y & %] - = &h LA R R AR &
BERET FREZFELUERER -
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As mentioned above, the Group closed its Shunde
production plant in the first quarter and turned entirely
to external procurement of the goods it sells. In the
long run, this will enhance the cost structure of the
Group’s products and increase the flexibility in inventory
control. Although the closure of the plant resulted in a
one-off severance payment and related expenses of
RMB37,400,000 in total, the Group generated a gain
before tax of RMB162,700,000 as the local government
offered to resume the land and buildings of the plant for
other land planning uses in consideration of relocation
compensation to the Group in the second half of the
year. Accordingly, the profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year amounted to RMB106,200,000,
compared to a loss of RMB30,500,000 in the previous
year.

The Board is confident that riding on the Group’s
experience in the development and production of
footwear and leather goods, its superb craftsmanship and
market knowledge, together with its dedication to product
quality and its healthy financial position, the Group will
be able to continue to provide highly comfortable and
fashionable products to its diverse customer base across
the brands under the Group, and seize the opportunities
in the ever-changing retail market to create long-term
satisfactory returns for its shareholders.

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude on behalf of the Board to all our Shareholders,
business partners and customers for their continued
support and, in particular, to all of our employees who
worked diligently and made significant contributions to
the Group during the year under review, without whom Le
Saunda would never be able to weather this challenging
year.

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 May 2021

le saunda holdings Itd.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating Results

The Group is engaged in the design, development and
retailing of ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags and
fashionable accessories in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Macau. The major proprietary brands of the Group
include le saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA ROSA, PITTI
DONNA and CNE, which aim to appeal to diversified
target customer groups with their distinctive product lines.

For the financial year 2020/21, the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic (“the Pandemic”) has severely hit the
retail markets in both mainland China and Hong Kong;
the total revenue of the Group decreased by 19.3% year-
on-year to RMB594,200,000 (2019/20: RMB736,400,000).
The consolidated gross profits decreased by 22.2% year-
on-year to RMB355,300,000 (2019/20: RMB456,500,000),
and the overall gross profit margin decreased by 2.2
percentage points to 59.8% compared to that of the
previous financial year. By late 2020, the local government
resumed the land and building of the Group’s production
plant situated in Shunde, which led to a one-off gain
for relocation compensation received. Consequently,
the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB106,200,000 (2019/20: loss of
RMB30,500,000).

le saunda holdings Itd.

REAHAZERARAR £ 2021

BRI i S g A

Bt 7% [ 8

ReEHEE

M%EEPXI?E BEMRFINERET -
MEKIEE KERE FREEHE
E W BﬁTEEQEDDH?? ¥5le saunda -
le saunda MEN - LINEA ROSA - PITTI
DONNA K CNE - AR EMNMER - B
EERMEERERRPE -

R-ZB-ZT/——HREFE  FTEENRRK
5RI5 (fFI DRE BREGETETE

Mz SEEBREZHER LT %19.3%
& A R #594,200,000t(ZE — A=
T £ A R#736,400,0007T) © 4 & F 7
A Lt R 4 22.2% & A R #355,300,0007T
(ZZ—h,/=—ZTF: A R¥456,500,000
JT) %ﬁ;—%%%wﬁﬁiiﬁﬁmﬂemma
DEEE8% c XREN_E-_TE K-
iﬂzﬁﬂzﬁ%ﬁ@%@Tlﬁ(‘l”éﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ%&i
CER—AMFBAEERS REX
W%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ}\wawé/mﬂﬁjxﬁm
106,200,000 (= ZF — N/ =T F : 518
A R #30,500,0007T) °
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i e g3 T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Operating Results (Continued)

Bt 5 0] R (4R

Rexm(E)

2020/21 2019/20 Change
RMB (million) AR® (BB “E-%/=- -hn/Z% g
Revenue Wz 594.2 736.4 (19.3%)
Gross profit EA 355.3 456.5 (22.2%)
Gross profit margin EFIE 59.8% 62.0% (2.2 percentage
points)
20BN %)
Consolidated profit/(loss) BEarBAEGRE 106.2 (30.5)
attributable to owners w A/ (E18)
Final dividend (HK cents) A HR B (BAL) 15.0 -
Final special dividend (HK cents) A ER R Rl AR S (L) 35.0 -
Annual dividend pay-out ratio FFREX 323.3% N/A 38 A
Profitability Analysis BRI R D

During the year under review, owing to the effects brought
by the Pandemic, the Group’s total sales and same-
store sales both recorded negative year-on-year growth.
The Group recorded a gross profit of RMB355,300,000
(2019/20: RMB456,500,000), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 22.2% and the gross profit margin decreased
to 59.8%, representing a decrease of 2.2 percentage
points as compared to last year.

To alleviate the adverse effects of the Pandemic on sales,
the Group took extra efforts in controlling the selling and
distribution expenses to cut it by 28.5% year-on-year to
RMB239,800,000 (2019/20: RMB335,200,000). The ratio
of selling and distribution expenses to total revenue thus
improved by 5.1 percentage points to 40.4% (2019/20:
45.5%).

le saunda holdings Itd.
HREAHERABR DA F3R 2021

REBFE XEBYE SEIEERL
MEEEESEER - 2FEFERLL
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (Continued)

The Group controlled its general and administrative
expenses in strict during the Pandemic; measures
included ceasing the operations of its Shunde production
plant immediately to reduce the daily operating expenses.
After including the one-off employee compensation
expenses (approximately RMB37,400,000) arising from
the closure of its Shunde factory, the Group’s general
and administrative expenses were still cut by 3.9%
to RMB147,300,000 (2019/20: RMB153,200,000) as
compared to last year. However, the drop in sales was
larger in scale compared with general and administrative
expenses, which caused the cost item as a percentage of
total revenue increased by 4.0 percentage points to 24.8%
(2019/20: 20.8%)).

Other income increased by 16.4% vyear-on-year to
RMB8,800,000 (2019/20: RMB7,600,000). This item
was mainly represented by the incentives from the local
government.

Other gains and losses recorded a net gain of
RMB184,800,000 (2019/20: net loss of RMB1,600,000),
which was mainly attributable to the gains of
RMB162,700,000, net of direct expenses, brought by
the relocation compensation received as the Group
surrendered the land and building of its Shunde factory to
the local government in December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i e g3 T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (Continued)

Consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
was RMB106,200,000 (2019/20: loss of RMB30,500,000).
The basic earnings per share was RMB15.04 cents
(2019/20: losses of RMB4.32 cents). After reviewing
the Group’s existing liquidity position and the future
financial needs for its development plan, the Board has
recommended to declare a final dividend of HK15.0 per
ordinary share and final special dividend of HK35.0 per
ordinary share (2019/20: no final dividend and final special
dividend).

Income Tax Expense

During the year under review, income tax expense
amounted to approximately RMB61,900,000 (2019/20:
RMB9,000,000), representing an increase of 584.5% year-
on-year, which was mainly attributable to the corporate
income tax paid and the relevant dividend withholdings
income tax accrued for the earnings that brought by the
relocation compensation. Since 2012, all business entities
of the Group in China are subject to an income tax rate of
25%, while the profit tax rate for operations in Hong Kong
remains at 16.5%. Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of China, a withholding income tax of 5% to 10%
shall be levied on the dividends remitted by a Chinese
subsidiary to its foreign parent company starting from 1
January 2008.

Inventory Management

As at 28 February 2021, the Group’s inventory balance
was RMB152,600,000, representing a decrease of 44.1%
as compared to last year.

A breakdown of inventory balance was as follows:
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Inventory Management (Continued)

Following the shutdown of Shunde factory, the inventory
of raw materials and work-in-progress decreased by
100% vyear-on-year. On the other hand, the inventory of
finished goods decreased by 42.0% year-on-year and the
items of current season and next season (both have stock
age less than 1 year) accounted for 47.2% of this ending
inventory (29 February 2020: 63.6%). This reflected the
Group, in response to the Pandemic, had timely reduced
the ordering of new products and actively disposed of off-
season products to mitigate the burden of the finished
goods inventory. As a result, the inventory turnover days
of finished goods also decreased by 52 days to 317 days
(29 February 2020: 369 days).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position remained very strong
and healthy. As at 28 February 2021, the Group’s cash
and bank balances amounted to RMB754,900,000 (29
February 2020: RMB508,600,000), representing an
increase of 48.4% year-on-year. The quick ratio was 7.2
times (29 February 2020: 5.4 times). During the year, the
Group had not borrowed any bank loan (2019/20: Nil)
and had no outstanding bank loan as at the financial
year-end date (29 February 2020: Nil). Forward contracts
will be used, if necessary, to hedge related debts and
bank borrowings arising from overseas purchases. The
Group did not enter into any forward contracts to hedge
its foreign exchange risks during the year. In addition,
working capital requirements for our business operations
in Mainland China will be financed by RMB loans
advanced from local banks when necessary.

During the financial year ended 28 February 2021, the
Group’s cash and bank balances were held in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars and RMB, respectively and all deposits
maturing within one year were placed in leading banks.

With the Group’s steady cash inflow from its operations,
coupled with its existing cash and banking facilities, it has
adequate financial resources to fund its future needs.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The severe impact of the Pandemic in early 2020 on
the global economy could not have been predicted. The
retail industry experienced an “extreme winter” amid the
Pandemic. Urgent remedial measures taken by various
countries could only provide a temporary boost to
the economy. Business bankruptcies and shutdowns,
shop closures, layoffs and pay cuts were still inevitable.
Given the pessimistic economic outlook and dampened
consumer sentiment, the economy plunged into the
deepest recession.

China was the first country to recover from the Pandemic.
The quarterly GDP of China turned positive from negative
in the second quarter of 2020 and continued with gradual
recovery, reaching an annual GDP growth rate of 2.3%
eventually. It was the only major economy in the world that
achieved positive economic growth in 2020. Benefited
from the recovery of the Chinese market, the Group’s
retail revenue stabilised for the second half of the year as
compared to the first half. During the year under review,
the Group’s retail revenue decreased by 19.3% year-on-
year to RMB594,200,000 (2019/20: RMB736,400,000),
while its same-store sales decreased by 10.5% (2019/20:
0.5%). However, economic data showed that whilst
China’s exports and investment were performing well,
consumption expenditure has yet to recover, causing an
unbalanced economic recovery. According to China’s
“14th Five-Year Plan”, it will continue to expand domestic
consumption, and introduce a series of stimulating policies
and measures to boost post-pandemic consumption
expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i e g3 T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Overview (Continued)

Faced with various challenges and potential opportunities
in the business environment, the Group made timely
strategic adjustments and re-planning, including ceasing
the procurement and production activities of its Shunde
factory and reallocating its resources to the retail
operations and product design and development of its
self-owned brands; tapping into social commerce and
expanding online sales channels through the “livestream
shopping” model; launching the le saunda Y collection via
online sales channels, which are designed to cater to the
preferences and buying behaviour of female consumers
of the younger generation; upgrading the membership
system to WeChat Mini Program, enhancing the
experience of membership benefits, while allowing more
room for branding and marketing. During the Pandemic,
the Group was determined to innovate, grasp the pulse of
the market and introduce new elements to its brands, and
so as to maintain the competitive edge of its brands and
its leading position in the female footwear market.

Retail Network

Mainland China is the key market of the Group’s retail
business. At the end of the year under review, the Group
had a retail network comprised of 389 stores in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau, representing a net
reduction of 52 stores compared to the corresponding
date of last year. The number of self-owned stores
dropped by 43, while the number of franchised stores
decreased by 9 during the year.

As at 28 February 2021, there were 297 core brand le
saunda stores, representing a net decrease of 34 stores
as compared to the end of last year. There were 40 LINEA
ROSA stores, the Group’s high-end fashionable brand,
representing a net decrease of 12 stores as compared to
the end of last year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network (Continued)

As at 28 February 2021, the breakdown of the Group’s
retail network was as follows:
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Mainland China M K B
Retail Business EEXK

As the domestic economy has picked up and recovered
gradually since the second quarter of 2020, people in the
Mainland China have basically returned to a normal pace
of life in the second half of the year. In fact, consumer
sentiment has not yet bounced back, with total retail sales
of consumer goods growing at -3.9% in 2020 and per
capita consumption expenditure registering a negative
growth for the first time since 2013. In particular, the
growth rate of retail sales of goods of “garments, footwear,
hats and knitwear category” was -6.6%, much lower than
the growth rate of overall retail sales of consumer goods.
As a result of the timely adjustment of its marketing
strategy, the Group’s retail sales in Mainland China has
showed an apparent improvement in the second half of
the year as compared to the first half of the year. The
Group’s retail sales in Mainland China in the year under
review decreased by 17.3% to RMB583,600,000 (2019/20:
RMB705,600,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i e g3 T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

The Pandemic prevention and control arrangements
have expedited the development of the concepts of
contactless shopping, self-service and neighbourhood
business district, which have changed people’s spending
habits. While customers are more likely to switch between
different sales channels, merchants’ contact points with
customers are more dispersed, implying a higher cost
in acquiring new customers and making it more difficult
in building brand loyalty. As the rapidly evolving market
offers more options to customers, we have to put more
emphasis on providing them quality store experience
and customer service. We regularly review the physical
store network and add new stores in suitable locations,
including some community malls, to respond to the new
market demands. We also strive to enhance customer
engagement by developing all online and offline channels
in a comprehensive and balanced manner.

E-commerce Business

Total retail sales of consumer goods failed to achieve a
positive growth rate in 2020. On the contrary, online retail
sales of physical goods grew by 14.8%. According to the
data released by the Chinese government, the ratio of
online retail sales of physical goods to total retail sales
of consumer goods has increased from 10.8% in 2015 to
24.9% in 2020. China has been the world’s largest online
retail market in eight consecutive years, and the online
market has also become an important fulcrum of the
domestic economy.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-commerce Business (Continued)

The Group also attaches great importance to the
development of its e-commerce business. In order to
reach out to the young consumer segment, the Group has
ventured into social commerce. To actively explore new
channels, the Group promotes its brands and products
through the “livestream shopping” on various social
platforms, including Douyin and Taobao Live. In addition,
we also launched the le saunda Y collection for young
women via online sales channels in the year under review.
The Group’s online sales no longer derives only from large
e-commerce platforms, and the share of other channels
has gradually increased. Affected by the Pandemic,
revenue from the e-commerce business decreased by
18.8% year-on-year during the year under review.

Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong’s GDP declined by 3.6% year-on-year in real
terms in the third quarter of 2020, narrowing slightly to
3.0% in the fourth quarter. For 2020 as a whole, real GDP
fell by 6.1%. The value of total retail sales experienced
the largest drop ever recorded in 2020, down 24.3%
from 2019. In particular, “footwear, allied products and
other clothing accessories category” fell by 39.7%. All
categories, except necessity goods, recorded a decline.
The continuing situation of COVID-19 in Hong Kong,
accompanied with social distancing measures, have
had a severe impact on consumer sentiments. With the
economic downturn and rising unemployment, spending
power remained weak and people were holding back
on their purchases even in the traditional peak season
for retail in December and the Lunar New Year holidays.
During the year under review, the Group’s sales in Hong
Kong and Macau decreased by 65.4% year-on-year to
RMB10,600,000 (2019/20: RMB30,800,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

Facing the complex and fast-changing situation and
intensifying international political conflicts, the Chinese
government has proposed a new “dual circulation”
development paradigm, with expanding domestic demand
as the strategic basis to support economic recovery and
sustainable growth. According to the “14th Five-Year Plan”
released by the Chinese government, China will continue
to expand domestic demand and introduce a series
of new policies and measures to boost consumption,
facilitate consumption upgrading, digitalisation and
innovation. It will also expand the middle-income group
and raise per capita income, thereby further boosting
domestic consumption. As the earliest country to recover
from the Pandemic, the economy of China is expected to
fully recover to the pre-pandemic level in the coming year.

After its Shunde factory had ceased operations, the
Group repositioned itself in the supply chain as a brand
operator. In the future, the Group will focus on product
design and brand management, aiming at offering better
products and services to increase market shares. For
product design and development, le saunda’s design
team focuses on developing comfortable formal shoes,
with original design metal buckles and accessories
to embellish the design in detail, that satisfied the
customers, thereby increasing the repeat purchase rate
and loyalty to the brand. Every season an appropriate
proportion of trendy styles, casual styles and co-branded
collections would be added to meet the dressing needs of
customers’ different occasions. The growing segmentation
of customer needs, coupled with the positive impact of
the government’s promotion of consumption upgrading,
has created great opportunities for various brands of the
Group to target different customer segments with different
types of products and sales channels.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i e g3

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

With fierce competition in the market and the emergence
of the “stay-at-home” economy due to the Pandemic,
some customers have been diverted by numerous
e-commerce operators of varying sizes. We must uphold
the fundamentals of retailing, strive to meet the needs of
our customers and enhance their shopping experience in
order to retain them. As people resumed to the original
pace of life in China, foot traffic and gathering activities
have gradually recovered. The Group will closely monitor
market conditions and search for suitable locations to
open new stores. Existing stores will also be renovated to
enhance the brand image and allow customers to shop for
their favourite products in a comfortable environment. In
addition, we will also introduce the WeChat membership
system Mini Program to existing members and new
customers to enhance the experience of membership
benefits and help promoting the brand. Through the new
membership system, information of the brands, products
and stores can be provided to customers more effectively,
making it easier and more convenient for them to shop
and enjoy the products and benefits that the Group has
prepared for them.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

With over 10 years of experience in the e-commerce
market, the Group is well aware of the rapid development
and changes in the market. The number of e-commerce
users continues to rise, and per capita spending and
total daily spending continue to grow. In particular, the
spending power of young customers born in the 1980s,
1990s and 2000s is very strong, and the penetration rate
of online consumption among these generations is very
high. Market data showed that young customers have
very distinctive spending patterns and preferences. They
value information from social media and tend to refer to
other users’ personal sharing or recommendations before
making their purchasing decisions. The Group will make
targeted use of social media such as Xiaohongshu and
Weibo to promote its products and brands in a subtler
appeal through individual sharing. The Pandemic has also
prompted “livestream shopping” to become a very popular
sales model. Social commerce live streaming (e.g. Douyin,
Taobao Live) will be another channel that we will focus
on developing, and the Group will select social media
platforms and internet celebrities that match our brand
image to achieve the desired marketing effect. In addition,
the le saunda Y collection launched by the Group on
e-commerce channels during the year under review will
continue to focus on leisure style products in order to
open up the young women’s market and refresh the brand
image of le saunda.

As the Pandemic has transformed customers’ spending
patterns, it becomes essential for online and offline
channels to complement each other. The online channels
will concentrate on drawing in new customers, exploring
new customer groups and promoting our brand and
products among a large group of e-commerce users. The
offline channels will focus on providing quality services,
establishing a professional brand image with our sales
teams and physical stores, allowing customers to fit our
products physically and providing more personalised and
detailed product information and product care knowledge
and thereby increase customers’ trust in our brands.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i e g3 T

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

As for operations, given the production is fully outsourced,
the Group’s role in the supply chain would have to
change. It is expected that the consumption market will
return to the pre-pandemic level gradually, so do the flow
of physical goods. With years of experience in supply
chain management, the Group is committed to maintaining
a stable supply in all our sales channels. By shortening
the production cycle, we will accelerate new product
launch and reordering of best-selling products, which
further reduces the amount of inventory and its turnover
days and, in turn, boosting overall operating efficiency.
Meanwhile, the Group will increase the application of
IT tools in different areas, including improvements and
digitalisation in business flows, data collection and
analysis in sales and membership system, exploration
in social media marketing, optimisation in membership
system etc., to satisfy all those needs brought by the new
retail concepts.

Though the business environment is full of challenges,
the Group strives to achieve the strategic goals, adheres
to the brand values, and provides customers with
quality services and products with a view to becoming
a trustworthy brand to our customers, securing better
results and creating a stable return for our Shareholders.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 28 February 2021, bank deposit of RMB700,000 (29
February 2020: RMB700,000) has been pledged as rental
deposit for a subsidiary of the Company.

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

The Company has given corporate guarantees in favour of
banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
on letters of credit and bank loans to the extent of
RMB96,000,000 (29 February 2020: RMB135,000,000),
of which RMB700,000 (29 February 2020: RMB800,000)
was utilised as at 28 February 2021.

le saunda holdings Itd.
KB ERBRAR  FIH 2021

E2E T H AEERAA/STEHINK
B SEEHREETNACKSDRES -
ﬁ%Xﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁi@@éE%

KE-BEYNRBEZEEATD - &H
HERRBEZFEEHEENLR &
NEFHZEBEERS mMTEE B
PREEERLERS NMRFELRK

%%E&ﬁ%ﬁ@’ﬁ—*hﬁﬁri
REFBEXE EMRABRLEN
KoRAF SESNREAEANKIA
RARIRE - Bl EHRENENREF L
HEHBENSERARBIBENIZTE LD ﬁ’
F B AL X2 ﬁm“”’%m§ TEICES
AimB#HtEREENFTK -

MERKEBRER DK KB LT
NERBBEEMB N BTmIEEE B
BERHEBEINERLRE KAERE
BEREEORE FMEEESE RRR
RIZE B

BHEE

RZE-_—F-_A-+NH £BEHA
R¥700,000t (ZE-FEF-_A -+ NHB:
AR #700,0007T) 2 RITIE R - 1EA
RARH—EMNBARIZHELIES -

DNEER
ARBRERE THEARMER ZER
MEBTERZRITHREZESRBAR

#06,000,0007 L (ZE=_FF-_H_+NH:
A R %135,000,0007T) [A] $R 1742 it A &) #&
R RZE-_—F_A=-+/\BC®BAHE
Ak & IRITE R A REE700,0000 (=ZE =
TF-A=+NB: AR¥800,0007T) °

annual report 2021

34



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to declare a final dividend
of HK15.0 cents (the “Final Dividend”) per ordinary share
and a final special dividend of HK35.0 cents (the “Final
Special Dividend”) per ordinary share for the year ended
28 February 2021 (29 February 2020: no final dividend
and final special dividend) to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday,
20 July 2021. The proposed Final Dividend and the
Final Special Dividend are subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “AGM”) of the Company. If approved, the Final
Dividend and the Final Special Dividend are expected
to be paid on Thursday, 29 July 2021, while a circular
containing further details of notice of the AGM will be
despatched to the Shareholders as soon as practicable.

The Board has resolved to pay an interim special dividend
of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share for the six months
ended 31 August 2020. (six months ended 31 August
2019: no interim dividend and interim special dividend).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 28 February 2021, the Group had a staff force
of 1,403 people (29 February 2020: 2,394 people). Of
this number, 48 were based in Hong Kong and Macau
and 1,355 in Mainland China. The remuneration level of
the Group’s employees was in line with market trends
and commensurate to the levels of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees comprised
basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives. Total
employee benefit expenses for the twelve months ended
28 February 2021, including Directors’ emoluments,
net pension contributions and the value of employee
services, amounted to RMB196,700,000 (2019/20:
RMB247,500,000). The Group has all along organised
structured and diversified training programmes for staff
at different levels. Outside consultants will be invited to
broaden the contents of the training programmes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERTLEEEEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky, aged 57, first joined the Group
in 1981 and was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in September 1992 and left the Group
in September 2010. She re-joined the Group in April
2016. She is an Executive Director of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Chui is responsible for the Group’s supply
chain management, product design and development,
e-commerce business operations, marketing, human
resources and administration functions. She has over 35
years of experience on retail and product management.
Prior to re-joining the Group, she was the chief executive
officer in a renowned handbag company in Mainland
China and was responsible for footwear products
development, manufacturing management and retail
operations.

Liao Jian Yu, aged 51, joined the Group in March
2010 as the general manager of {Z# M) ARA
Al (“Xindie”), which is and was at the material times a
66.7% owned subsidiary of the Group, and was mainly
responsible for business development and retail operation
in Zhejiang and Anhui provinces in Mainland China.
The remaining 33.3% of the equity interest in Xindie, of
which her spouse is a director and legal representative,
is and was at the material times owned by a company
owned by Ms. Liao and her spouse. She was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company in March 2018
and is responsible for retail and franchise operation and
business development of the Group in Mainland China.
Prior to joining the Group, she was a franchisee of the
Group which operated in Zhejiang province. Ms. Liao has
over 23 years of experience on business development and
retail management in Mainland China and was given the
award “rMIE & ¥ # 88 A” at Hangzhou Xiacheng District in
February 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Li Wing Yeung, Peter, aged 62, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2020. He is responsible for the
development and quality control of the Group’s products.
He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li has over 15 years of experience in
product management. He is the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

James Ngai, aged 58, joined the Group in March
2011. He is a Non-Executive Director of the Company,
the Chairman of the board of the Company (the
“Board”) and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Board.
He is responsible for the Group’s leadership and
management of the Board and the Group’s strategy.
Mr. Ngai graduated from University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation matters. Mr. Ngai is a director of
Stable Gain Holdings Limited (“Stable Gain”) which has
an interest in the shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Max Sight Group Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRGAREEHAR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon, aged 72, joined the Group in
January 2006. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Board and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he
worked at KPMG London and Hong Kong and obtained
his qualification as a chartered accountant and certified
public accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants respectively. Mr.
Lam has been a practising accountant for over 30 years
and is the proprietor of Messrs. S. L. Lam & Company.
He has served as a member of Insider Dealing Tribunal on
a number of occasions. Mr. Lam is also an independent
non-executive director of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was previously an independent
non-executive director of Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co.
Ltd. (formerly known as Lifestyle Properties Development
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Leung Wai Ki, George, aged 63, joined the Group in
September 2004. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Leung has over 33 years of
experience in accounting, financial management, auditing
and receivership. He is a director and financial controller
of a real estate development company in Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Hui Chi Kwan, aged 72, joined the Group in November
2007. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Hui graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1980 and
has been a solicitor practising in Hong Kong since 1983.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Hui was a partner of a law
firm in Hong Kong. He retired from the partnership in
2007 and remained as a consultant of the said law firm.
Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Max Sight Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yuen Chee Wing, aged 55, joined the Group in August
2010. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company and is responsible for the
Group’s financial control and accounting, treasury,
tax, legal and company secretarial matters. Mr. Yuen
graduated from City University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Business, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration, and Manchester Metropolitan University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. He is a certified public
accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yuen has over 26 years of experience in
audit and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the financial controller of a machinery manufacturer listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Li Ying Ying, aged 52, joined the Group in September
1997. She is the General Manager (Southern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in the southern region of Mainland China.
Ms. Li has over 24 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.

Xiao Kun Min, aged 46, joined the Group in March
2004. She is the General Manager (Southwestern China)
of the Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail
business operations in southwestern region of Mainland
China. Ms. Xiao has over 25 years of retail experience in
Mainland China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e SEeleE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is committed
to achieving and maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance. The Board and its management
understand that it is their responsibility to establish a
good corporate management system and practice and
strictly comply with the principles of independence,
accountability, responsibility and impartiality so as to
improve the operation transparency of the Company,
protect the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and create value for the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of, and applied the principles in, the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for deviation from
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates
that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Cheng Wang,
Gary as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
with effect from 16 October 2019, the position of Chief
Executive Officer is currently vacant. The Company is
in the process of identifying a suitable candidate to fill
the position of Chief Executive Officer and the role and
responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer are being
performed by other Executive Directors of the Company
for the time being.

The Board will continue to enhance the Group’s corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the Group’s business and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply
with statutory and professional standards and align with
the latest developments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Board
comprised three Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Board has established three board committees,
namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
to oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. The
composition of the Board and the board committees are
given below and their respective responsibilities and work
performed during the year are discussed elsewhere in this
report.

During the year ended 28 February 2021 and up to the
date of this report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter

Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e St

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

There is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among members of
the Board, except that:

(@ Mr. James Ngai is a director of an accounting firm
which provides advisory and audit services to private
companies owned by Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a
controlling shareholder of the Company;

(o) Both Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces and Mr. James
Ngai are the directors of Stable Gain Holdings
Limited (“Stable Gain”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company. The entire issued share capital of
Stable Gain was registered in the name of Stable
Profit Holdings Limited (“Stable Profit”), a company
wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC Trustee”) which acted as trustee of
Lee Tze Bun Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”),
a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces was the founder and an eligible beneficiary
thereunder. Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces was also the
sole director of Stable Profit;

(¢)  Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, is a trustee of The Lee Keung Charitable
Foundation (“Charitable Foundation”), of which Mr.
Lee Tze Bun, Marces is the founder; and

(d) Both Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are
independent non-executive directors of Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8483).

The biographical details of each Director are set out
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 36 to 39 of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

Each Director possesses the necessary expertise
and experience and provides checks and balances
for safeguarding the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole. During the year, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors provided the Group
with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their
active participation in the Board and committee meetings
brought independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all Shareholders.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors
representing not less than one-third of the Board. Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, one of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, has the appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of
his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Whilst
Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are directors of
both the Company and Max Sight Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8483) and thus hold cross-directorships, the
Board determines that Mr. Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless
independent with respect to his directorship at the
Company since Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
hold only non-executive roles at both companies and have
no interest in both companies as disclosed under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis of at least four times a year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. The Board
members are served with notices of at least 14 days and
provided with all agendas and adequate information for
their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After
the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by
any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the expense of
the Company. During the year, the Board held 8 physical
meetings and 4 written resolutions were signed and
passed by all Directors. The attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings are set out on page 58 of
this report.

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the
development of the Group with the goal of maximising
Shareholders’ value in the long run. The Board also takes
the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, approves and monitors the strategic
plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews
the Group’s financial and operational performance and
internal controls. The Group’s day-to-day operations and
administration are overseen by the Executive Directors
and the management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities and Delegation (Continued)

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic
direction and policies of the Group and supervising the
management of the Company. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions,
matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval
of interim and annual results, declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends and other
disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by
the Board for consideration and approval. Matters not
specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the
daily management and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
of the Company.

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company would provide a
comprehensive induction package covering the summary
of the operations and business, constitutional documents,
the latest published financial reports of the Company,
“A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong and the Guidelines for Directors
and the Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors to
each newly appointed Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules,
corporate governance practices and other regulatory
regime to the Directors with written materials, as well as
organising seminars on the professional knowledge and
latest development of regulatory requirements related to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ Training (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, all
Directors pursued continuous professional development
and relevant details are set out below:
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Types of training

Name of Directors EEHA 1338 Bl
Executive Directors: HITES:

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky BrETR L A B
Ms. Liao Jian Yu Bt A B
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXxBEE A, B
Non-Executive Director: FkHITESE:

Mr. James Ngai i ffE % A& A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIYFHITES:

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MK B ST A A B
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George RERELE A, B
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FFRBEE A, B
Remarks: AR -

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for indemnifying the
Directors and officers of the Company against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred arising
out of the corporate activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and appointing
individuals with integrity, experience and calibre to act as
Directors. The Board reviews the profiles of the candidates
and seeks recommendations from the Nomination
Committee on the appointment and re-election of the
Directors.

According to bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
each Director so appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting (the "AGM”) of the Company in
case of an addition to the Board and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Moreover, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third), shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall retire from office by rotation no later
than the third AGM after he was last elected or re-elected.
The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out on page
75 of this report.

All Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company were appointed
for a specific term of 2 years but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but be eligible for re-election.

le saunda holdings Itd.
KB ERBRAR  FIH 2021

e SeIEE
EEE(H)
EBCEAREER
EERAABMEARALE EEBRLRE

THOATEFTES ESFEHRE
ABEERESHNZERERSKIE
%;E\@ZLH& °

REBEARB 2 2E@ARTARAARD) -
%Aﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁuuﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁczﬂt%ﬁ
ZRNBESFSHEKE AR IR
REEZETEARFABRRBAFAREG (KRR
FAERENRIL EREEERNZAE
BEE I ER=DZz—EFEMRK
TrZ%(EI;'E MEE - RIEAREENE
PNIM=ZpZ—HB)ARFEERME - ER
TBREZ(BRARECHZESIVA
EFEROI-REBIEERRNTBRBE=
EZERREAFAXELHFERET ARE
ERREAFAGRENEZEZHREIES
HBHENAREETH -

RARFIBHEBTES(BIEBILIENTT
BERICEEEHARFE HEAX R AHA
B S E ] E A @ A Bl 2 B IR SCRR -
NEEEMITIERTENEEREE 2
FRIE ©

annual report 2021

47




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e St

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

In order to maintain a balance of power and authority, the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and assumed by separate
individuals who have no relationship with each other.
During the year, Mr. James Ngai, being the Chairman of
the Board, is responsible for overseeing the function of the
Board and formulating overall strategies and policies of
the Company and ensuring that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate information, which must be complete
and reliable, in a timely manner. Before his resignation
effective on 16 October 2019, Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary,
being the Chief Executive Officer as he then was, was
responsible for the implementation of the Company’s
overall strategies and coordination of overall business
operation. Since his resignation and whilst the Company
is in search of a suitable candidate to assume the role
as Chief Executive Officer, the role and responsibility of
the Chief Executive Officer are being performed by other
Executive Directors of the Company in the meantime. The
day-to-day operations and administration of the Group are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
responsible for different aspects of the business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All
board committees have clear and specific written terms
of reference, report their work to the Board after each
meeting and are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their respective duties. Copies of minutes of
all meetings and written resolutions passed at the board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 1999. As at 28
February 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan. Mr. Lam has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The primary functions and duties of the Audit Committee
are to recommend the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, oversee the integrity of
financial information of the Company and its disclosure,
provide independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, and review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group. The full
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 5 physical
meetings with the external auditor, internal auditor and
independent consultants. The Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Financial Officer were invited to attend the
meetings. The attendance records of each member of the
Audit Committee are set out on page 58 of this report.
A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year was as follows:

(i) review of the audit plan, terms of engagement,
independence and qualification of the external auditor
and the remuneration paid to the external auditor;

(i) review of the financial information of the Group
including the annual and interim financial statements
and related documents before submission to the
Board for approval;

(i) review of the management letters and reports issued

by the external auditor;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(iv) review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the potential impacts of
the change in accounting standards to the Group’s
financial statements;

(v) review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group; and

(vi) review of the internal audit reports prepared by
an independent consulting firm in respect of the
effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management of the
Group twice a year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
written terms of reference (as amended) since 2005. As
at 28 February 2021 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Leung Wai
Ki, George and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy, determine the terms of
specific remuneration package of the Executive Directors
and senior management, and review and approve
the performance-based remuneration proposals with
reference to the corporate goals and objective resolved by
the Board from time to time. The full terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held
1 physical meeting. The attendance records of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out on
page 58 of this report. In the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee (i) reviewed the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company; (i)
approved performance-based remuneration with reference
to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board and/or the senior management from time to time;
and (iii) ensured that no Director or senior management
or any of his/her associates was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Details of the emoluments for
Directors, chief executive and five highest paid individuals,
and senior management remuneration by band during the
year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 19 March 2012.
As at 28 February 2021 and up to the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon and Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, and
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The
full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1
physical meeting. The attendance records of each
member of the Nomination Committee are set out on
page 58 of this report. In the meeting, the Nomination
Committee (i) reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board; (i) assessed the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors; (iii) made recommendations
to the Board on the proposed re-election of the retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting; and
(iv) reviewed the diversity of the Board’s composition.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy with the aim of
achieving diversity on the Company’s Board of Directors
in August 2013. The Company recognises the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity of perspectives
at the Board level as essential in achieving a sustainable
and balanced development. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, industry experience and expertise.
All Board appointments are based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee will review this policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this policy.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to
the Board of Directors for examination and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

The Board contains individuals who have diverse
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. Coming
from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Non-Executive Directors actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. On the other
hand, the Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute
to ensuring that the interests of all Shareholders of the
Company are taken into account by the Board and that
relevant issues are subject to objective and dispassionate
consideration by the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 36 to 39 of this report.
In implementing the board diversity policy, the Board aims
to have a balanced composition in each of the relevant
areas, but recognising at the same time that all Board
appointments must be based on meritocracy having
regard to the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Board adopted a nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with the aim to set out
the criteria and procedures for the Nomination Committee
considering candidates to be appointed or re-appointed
as the Directors.

The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate:

(1)

(@) age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise,
professional and educational qualifications,
background and other personal qualities of the

candidate;

effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

©)

commitment of the candidate to devote
sufficient time to effectively discharge his/her
duties as a member of the Board and/or board
committee(s) of the Company. In this regard,
the number and nature of offices held by the
candidate in public companies or organisations,
and other executive appointments or significant
commitments will be considered;

scrutinising the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

independence of the candidate in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules subject to its
amendments from time to time;

potential/actual conflicts of interest that may
arise if the candidate is selected;

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of
an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
number of years he/she has already served;

conforming to any requirement, direction
and regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate; and

other factors considered to be relevant by the
Nomination Committee on a case by case basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

@)

Process of appointment of a new Director:

(@)

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other members of the management and
external recruitment agents, and should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new Director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is to be appointed, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board will
also assess and consider whether the candidate
can satisfy the independence requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules;

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable);

The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable; and

For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a Director at
the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) ESZEE(H)

Nomination Committee (Continued) BEEZEES(HE)

Nomination Policy (Continued) IEEHKE (&)

(3) Re-election of Director at General Meeting: B MEEARGHEEFZMNIE:

(@ The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board,

(b) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is subject to the
re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board will also assess and consider whether
the Independent Non-Executive Director
will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules; and

(¢ The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should then make recommendation to
shareholders of the Company in respect of the
proposed re-election of Director at the general
meeting.

(@)

REZEGER /REFZSER
WREESHARREBER
LR AERBRREEENHZ
HiZE MR

REZEGR /REZGNE
B REBERTEEETERHEE
A LAEER] - #3832 FFATT
BEEABEEE REEESR/
SEEFENHIEREEEL
FUTEEREGREBETA

MRAAEABLERE R

REZEER /HEZERR
BRAGLAARABKREZ
BERERES -

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or WMEZFEeNREAS LIEZH BT IE
re-elect a candidate as Director at the general meeting, EEAABESE  FEZANHBEEHER
the relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed  # & #8 Bl & 3k i B )% 2 )% 8 IR AR
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or AFEEREBEBEHE KERHEHBEERE S
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the @& HIRBE KA EE o

relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing
Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) EEZE8 (&)
Nomination Committee (Continued) REZEE(H)
Nomination Policy (Continued) RBEHE(E)
The following graph provides an analysis on the WAIFFEHHE  BEEESZHKREUT
composition of the Board as at the date of this report: KON

Number of Directors

EEHA
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
EDs
1 WE Female 51-60 5
i =
0
Designation Gender Age Group Directorship with the
Bz 14 B FEES4E R Company (Number of years)
BERQNT EERG(FEH)
Remarks: i HE
EDs — Executive Directors WE - HITEF
NEDs — Non-Executive Directors IHE — FNTEF
INEDs — Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIERNE — BUFWITES
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B RS
BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) BEEZES(HE)
Attendance Records H & 50 8%

The individual attendance records of each Director at REE-_ZT-_—F-_A-+/\BHILEERN
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, ZBE=ERHEFTEFEe o =T Ee S
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and &% - ¥l Z 2@ @5  IERXE 82 @}
the annual general meeting of the Company (2020 AGM”) kARG ZKREEFA((ZZE_ZEFRK
during the year ended 28 February 2021 are set out HEFAKE|)zHELENSFHFOT:

below:
Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure
FtE/ REFSRETZ 22
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Note Board Committee Committee Committee 2020 AGM
ZECEE
frit Eze EnzEE §MzEe Rzz8g8 RRAEAE
Executive Directors: YnES:
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky BEILL 8/8 N/A N/A N/A 1
AER Nk Nk
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BERTL 8/8 N/A N/A N/A 1
Sk TER TER
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter £y ¢ bk 8/8 N/A N/A N/A 11
rER Nk Nk
Non-Executive Director: ~ FH#{7E%:
Mr. James Ngai fE&EE 1 8/8 5/5 11 11 11
Independent Non-Executive BUf#HTES:
Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon WhBEE 88 5/5 1 i il
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PEERE 8/8 5/5 1 11 11
Mr. Hui Chi Kiwan FRBEEE 88 5/5 1 i 1
Note: B1 it -
1. Mr. James Ngai attended the Audit Committee meetings as an invitee. 1. RESEEANZTBEESHEFEEZZES SR -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices relevant to the model and growth of
its business. In order to achieve a right balance between
governance and performance, the Board is responsible for
ensuring the application of the principles in the CG Code
and introducing and proposing other relevant principles
concerning corporate governance so as to enhance the
standard of corporate governance of the Company. The
Board is primarily responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions adopted with written
terms of reference on 19 March 2012:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

The details of the corporate governance functions
reviewed and performed by the Board during the year are
further disclosed and explained elsewhere in this report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 28 February 2021, in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have adopted HKFRSs and suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgements
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to any events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in the course of preparing
and reviewing the financial statements for the year under
review.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
95 to 105 of this report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the external
auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 28 February 2021, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services (the non-audit services
comprised of professional services relating to the major
transaction during the year and tax advisory services
only) provided to the Group by the external auditor of
the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounted to
approximately HK$1,700,000 (2019/20: HK$2,050,000)
and HK$603,000 (2019/20: HK$254,000) respectively.
The Audit Committee was of the view that the non-audit
services provided by the external auditor of the Company
did not impair its independence and objectivity.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yuen Chee Wing (“Mr. Yuen”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 1 January 2019.
Mr. Yuen is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In his capacity
as the Company Secretary, Mr. Yuen reports to the Board
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Yuen took not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors since
4 October 2005. The terms of the Code of Conduct are
no less exacting than the required standard in the Model
Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all the relevant
persons as defined in the Code of Conduct, including the
Directors, any employee of the Company, or a Director
or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company, who, by reason of such office or employment,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of
Conduct and the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 28 February 2021 and up to
the date of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and has overall
responsibility for reviewing and maintaining adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the assets
of the Group. It reviews and evaluates the effectiveness
of the said systems at least annually (and has done so
during the year) to ensure the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks,
rather than eliminate risks, of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Company, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of
risk at all business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the establishment of a risk
register to keep track of and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure
their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent
risks that affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk
matrix is adopted to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M
= medium risk, H = high risk) after evaluation of the risk
by the likelihood and the impact of the risk event. The risk
ratings reflect the level of attention of the management
and the effort of risk treatment required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk
owners of departments and major subsidiaries is required
to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk
is evaluated according to the risk matrix. After taking
into consideration of the risk response, such as control
measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk
of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register
with the risk responses and residual risks is reported to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board.
The highest category of residual risks is subject to the
Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of
operations, the Group set up an internal audit
department (the “Internal Auditor”) in August 2017 with
an aim to continuously improve the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control of the Group. The
Internal Auditor is required to prepare a risk oriented
annual audit plan, and on the basis of risk assessment
results, determine the work focus of internal audit that is in
line with the organisation objective. The annual audit plan
should be subject to approval by the Audit Committee.

Further, the Board has engaged an independent
consulting firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a
thorough review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the period
from 1 March 2020 to 28 February 2021 in accordance
with the requirements under Code Provision C.2 of the
CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects
(Continued)

After conducting a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
during the year, the Internal Auditor and the Consultant
reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee
was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems after implementation of the recommendations
of the Internal Auditor and the Consultant with regard
to internal control defects. The Audit Committee
reviews annually, and has reviewed during the year, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures and
has access to information necessary to fulfil its duties
and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Based on the foregoing review,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective
and adequate during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

The Board has established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the duty
and responsibility of inside information announcement,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of
rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and waiver to the disclosure of inside information, and
also compliance and reporting procedures. Every member
of the senior management of the Company must take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Company from time to time. They must
promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial
Officer, who will notify the Board accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate
persons to decide, on a course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.

le saunda holdings Itd.

2 B B R R EB BE 4 (D)

AU EAREERABEEZHES
BMUERBRBENABEZRINEF
(&)

RER - ETRARERE RAEEZEHE
MAEMIEENRTIR - ABEES AR
RAEZZEQER MEXRZES)
BEE A E A& B REE R R E
ERRAESZE  ARAKLRFTOAR
ERNMANERGEEELYEHLREX
RK - BRZESBFERNALQRME
BEFE NEEEHE RREEH
EREBEFRETED R ABNEE M
REDRBEEL  UETHEBERERG
HEREREZEEMER - At B
ZEehEEERAFAAREERRA
MEZFEBBER LA -

EERBEMABHEENEFRABEE
15 i
EECCHREEREMARTEENEF
FAMEERERHERK ZBERTE
TRABHBEEAMOBE  EXZFIFEAMRGE
B REES EBEEEBURE #M2ek
MEREARZBETHEARS - ARG
RERERF -ARBIBEREEEAR
BARBR—UAERE BRARQAD
RRAERENHEIER  AMEREELN
RANPERTE RELBERARIER
R BREIIEANRBEMTMNETRR
BEFEMBAEHBNESS A RRERIE
ENTH NBRERRABREK EFS
R TE 3 18 K BB A £ AR E AL IE B
MTTE T8 W RBREE -

annual report 2021
KBUAHERERLDE  FR 2021

64



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company intends to create long-term value for the
Shareholders through maintaining a balance between
dividend distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and
reserve to meet its working capital requirements and
capturing future growth opportunities. The Board has
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-Laws of the
Company and any other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) to provide guidance on whether to propose a
dividend and to guide the Board to consider, inter alia, the
following factors in determining the dividend amount:

° the Group’s actual earnings performance;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

° the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business, financial results
and position of the Company; and

° other factors that the Board may deem appropriate
and relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that any dividend will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all Shareholders equally and ensures
that the Shareholders’ rights are protected and every
convenience is provided to them where practicable to
enable the exercise of their rights.

1. Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58 of the Bye-Laws,
Shareholders (the “Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may request the Board to call a SGM
by a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be stated
in the written requisition. The requisition must be
signed by the Requisitionists and deposited with
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Before convening the SGM
of the Company, the requisition will be verified with
the Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong to obtain their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order. The SGM shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
within 21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner in
accordance with Section 74 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), (i) the
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders, are entitled to request the Company
to give shareholders notice of a resolution which
is intended to be moved at the next AGM or
SGM. A written notice to that effect signed by the
Requisitionist(s) with contact information must be
deposited at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 1104-11086,
11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong (addressed to the Company Secretary). The
notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the
proposed resolution desired to be put forward at
the meeting, the reasons for such a proposal and
any material interest of the proposing shareholder in
such a proposal. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a
general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director”, which is posted on the
website of the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries to the Board

The Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Address: Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s

Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at general meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors

The Board recognised that effective communication
with the Company’s investors plays a crucial role in
maintaining existing investors’ confidence and attracting
new investors and enhancing their understanding of the
Group’s performance, strategies and future direction. To
foster effective communication with the Shareholders
and potential investors of the Company, the Company
endeavours to provide accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
the interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press interviews and press releases on the website of the
Company.

The AGM provides a useful platform for the Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of
the Board and the Chairman of each board committees
are available at the AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
of the Company is also available at the AGM to assist
the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
the Shareholders. To ensure the Board is maintaining
an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders, the
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM or other
general meetings of the Company. The notice of AGM is
sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM and posted on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

In addition to the AGM, the Board designates specialised
personnel to maintain close communication with research
analysts, fund managers, the Shareholders and media
outlets via regular one-on-one meetings, luncheons,
factory visits, press conferences and road shows to keep
them informed of the Group’s business performance and
developments.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Memorandum of Association
and the Bye-Laws of the Company during the year ended
28 February 2021.

le saunda holdings Itd.
KB ERBRAR  FIH 2021

REEBR
ERRERERREEZEBE

EEERNEFATREENREE N
B REVRAERLRRIIFILEE
TR AMBEAEE KRR BHE
RABEFTMERATHE « A0 ERH
RAARZBEERAELWEREA K
ARENEBER R EE RS -
B - {5 R T B AR A 48
R EE R OEN 2 E R AR
ap o

D

ARBIBRBAFRESRREHREES
eXBMEBERNEAYE EFRIFELT
EXREETIFAGHERRAFAE
VEEERAREEEZETEMEHL Z
M o AR NS AZ BED T & R
BAEREUNHHEZTCOREREMNEH
A - REREFSRRRFERSESE -
BAORREFEARABRRBAFAKEHE
MERERARE BRREAFAEBERZK
REAFRERTAMIEL - +EZEXA
TR R - X BB X B e AR R 4
B -

BRRAFASIN EFSZERTEA
TEHARASTE E2KE RELEH
e 2ETH-—H-—gF TEE.
2EBERE KBEMERBEZREE
B ERFNEAEEIEHFRELE
R o

BEEXH
Hz2-_ZET-_—4F-_A=-+t\BLEFER -
AN EIRAE R AR ML mE
Eb o

annual report 2021

63



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in
presenting to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) its report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 28 February
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group is principally engaged in trading and sale of
footwear.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year ended 28 February 2021 by business and
geographical segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required
pursuant to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), comprising
analysis of the Group’s performance during the vyear,
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year as well as indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 14 to 17 of this report and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 18 to
35 of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Financial Highlights on pages 2 to 3 of this report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

U

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands that its business has an
impact on the environment and recognised the
importance of sound environmental management
and sustainable development. It is committed to
complying with the relevant environmental legislations
and standards related to its business operations as
set by the authorities in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong where it operates.

The Group has implemented a number of
environment-friendly measures in its operations and
workplaces including but not limited to retail shops,
warehouses and offices. The Group will prioritise
the purchase of eco-friendly materials or products
and also manage the environmental performance
of its supply chain. In daily operations, the Group
advocates “paperless office” and actively promotes
electronic management information system. It also
sets up the equipment necessary for different
kinds of meetings including teleconference and
video conference, resulting in savings in time
and resources. For retail shops, the Group has
implemented energy saving practices by using LED
lighting fixtures.

The environmental, social and governance report of
the Company will be published as a separate report
on the respective websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company within 3 months after the publication of this
report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) XEKESRE)

(1) Compliance with Laws and Regulations (D]

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risks of
non-compliance with such requirements. The Group
has conducted on-going review of the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group and provides relevant trainings and guidance
to the staff. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations of PRC and Hong Kong
that have significant impact on the operations of the
Group for the year ended 28 February 2021.

(lll) Key Relationships ()
(a) Employees

The Group believes that employees are a key
element to the success of its business, so it
strives to maintain a high staff retention rate by
providing competitive remuneration packages
and developing a harmonious workplace.
To enhance the capabilities and productivity
of its employees, the Group provides a
comprehensive training program to instill them
with quality service skills, product knowledge
and language and interpersonal skills. In
addition, the Group organises regular retail staff
gatherings to promote team spirit and awards
retail staff with outstanding sales performance.

(b) Consumers

The Group provides direct service to consumers
in its retail shops. To ensure continuous
improvement of the quality of products and
services, the Group regularly conducts internal
and external market surveys to interact with
consumers and to gain more market insights
and feedback.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(lll) Key Relationships (Continued)

()

(@)

Suppliers

The Group has established long business
relationship with certain suppliers. It selects
its suppliers prudently. The relevant suppliers
need to fulfil certain assessment criteria of the
Group, including, among others, track record,
experience, financial capability, reputation
and history of meeting our standards for raw
materials or finished products. The Group has
established anti-bribery policies which are
required to be observed by all parties with
business dealings with the Group.

Shareholders and Investors

The Board believes effective communication
and the disclosure of accurate and timely
information build the confidence of Shareholders
and investors, and also facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are
beneficial for investor relations and future
corporate development. For details, please
refer to the Shareholders’ Rights and Investor
Relations of the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 66 to 68 of this report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February
2021 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 106 of this report.

The Board declared an interim special dividend of HK5.0
cents (2019/20: NIL) per ordinary share for the year ended
28 February 2021, totaling approximately RMB32,204,000,
which was paid to the Shareholders on 23 November
2020.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK15.0 cents (the “Final
Dividend”) (2019/20: NIL) per ordinary share and a final
special dividend of HK35.0 cents (the “Final Special
Dividend”) (2019/20: NIL) per ordinary share, totaling
approximately RMB294,589,000 in respect of the year
ended 28 February 2021 (2019/20: NIL). Subject to
the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 12 July
2021 (the “AGM”), the proposed Final Dividend and Final
Special Dividend will be payable on 29 July 2021 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 20 July 2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on
pages 210 to 211 of this report. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in notes 28
and 33(b) to the accompanying financial statements.

As at 28 February 2021, the Company’s retained
earnings and contributed surplus of approximately
RMB822,104,000 were available for distribution to the
Company’s shareholders, of which RMB294,589,000 has
been proposed as final and special dividends for the year.
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DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during
the year (2019/20: RMB3,000,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the principal investment property held by the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
notes 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter

Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 36 to 39 of this report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Ms.
Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky, Ms. Liao Jian Yu and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers
that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the guidelines. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are both directors of the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8483) and thus hold
cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr. Hui
Chi Kwan is nevertheless independent with respect to
his directorship at the Company since Mr. James Ngai
and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan hold only non-executive roles at
both companies and have no interest in both companies
as disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). During the year, the service contract of
Mr. James Ngai, acted as Non-Executive Director, was
renewed for a fixed term of 2 years with the Company
with effect from 25 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Except for the connected transactions as detailed below,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Company in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
entered into any contract of significance with the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested
in any business which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the year.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP AND OTHER
CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The changes in directorship and other changes in the
information of the Directors of the Company, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules, subsequent to the publication of the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 29 February
2020 are set out below:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERFHRS

ESUBRESERNCHMED

B FHRBIFEI1B5IBOIEZRE BT
BREAARBE-_E-_TE_A=-1+AN
HEFEZFRTIFEUANRRNQR ZEEE
BREFENCEMEHHIN DT :

Name of Directors Details of change

EspnA BEFE

Non-Executive Director:

FHITES:

Mr. James Ngai o Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of

7 & S 2 years commencing on 25 March 2021 and ending on 24 March
2023

ERARREIRBEY AT —F=-A-_+tHALEE_ZF
TZF-ZAZTHMBELLE AWEFEEFH

Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed herein pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

BEXFIEEEN BEEMERER
B FWAR B EA351BAVIE 2 3R E M P LAE

= o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 28 February 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital
of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFQO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

EERBESTRAERARAREME
BEE R  HEROREZDR

BEZEZRAR
RZEBE-—F-_A=-+/\B KQAIESE

MESITHABRARR R EER LR (E
ERBEBEPIESTIEBELERBERG ([F
5K BRSO ) EEXVER) 2 B% AR & B% @
B0 Tz E@mAR(A M) - B MK
NEETHA BREBEZFRBEED
EXVEFTNR F8n S AME AN A KB
REZEERAR BEREESRBE
GO Z2ZEBRXHEERB BER ZE
HEKR) WL AREBELER B EK
BlE3ME B EBEFEZE M zERE R
KB IR ETRBIM SR+ ATE £
MEITAESETELSIFNEESTR (12
EFANBEMNEARARBIfTzER R
KB

() Long positions in Shares (including N BHzixrs(BFEEBRST)
underlying Shares)
Number of Shares
Rt 8A
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Spouse Corporate Other share capital of
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total  the Company
fEALAE
E2pts EARE 13y rARER Efp s A% BORAEAR
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter (“Mr. Li") 6,239,200 11,000 - 55,000,000 61,250,200 8.67%
FxBRE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(i) (Wit2)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky (‘Ms. Chui') 5,027,000 - - - 5,027,000 0.71%
BEELL(Bat))
Ms. Liao Jian Yu (‘Ms. Liao") 299,200 - - - 299,200 0.04%
BERxt(ERt)) Note 3)
(Hit3)
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George (‘Mr. Leung’) - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 0.24%
PEERE(R%E) (Note 4
(Hit4)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

m

Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares) (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Li personally held 5,909,200 Shares and was entitled to
330,000 share options granted by the Company, the underlying
Shares of which he was taken to have an interest.

Mr. Li, Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie and Ms. Cheung Man
Ching, Teresa jointly held 55,000,000 Shares as trustees of The
Lee Keung Charitable Foundation, (the “Charitable Foundation”)
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Therefore, all of them are deemed to be
interested in these Shares which are duplicated amongst their
respective interests.

Ms. Liao personally held 114,400 Shares and was entitled to
184,800 share options granted by the Company, the underlying
Shares of which she was taken to have an interest.

Mr. Leung was a governor of Xin Chuan Middle School

Foundation Limited, which held 1,700,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Leung was deemed to be interested in these Shares.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

HRgHRY

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBEETHRAERARATREM
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BB z2RD  HBARORESDF
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND BEHEZRKA(E)

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

() Long positions in underlying shares and (I XATZHEHBROREFZHFRE
debentures of the Company

Interests in share options BIREER
Adjusted number of share options Note 3/
BREZBREHR N HY)
Total
outstanding Adjusted
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at exercise
Name of Date of share Balance as at during the during the during the during the 28 February price per
Directors options granted 1 March 2020 year year year year 2021 Share  Exercise period
(Notes 16 2) (Note §)
RZ2-%F R=8=-%
ZA-B2 ZB=thA TRE
3.2 REBREZRH g% RERRY  REAGR  REAEE  RERXH HATR  SROKE REE
(Hi1k2) (H#3)
HKS
BT
Mr. Li 10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
TkBRE 2012577108 2014ETR10B 220225 7A9A
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2.185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
2012477108 20165 7A10R Z2022F 7A9H
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012£7A108 20165 7A108 £202257A9H
Ms. Liao 10 July 2012 184,800 - - - - 184,800 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
Bt 201277108 2016%7A108 220225749
Total 514,800 - - - - 514,800

@t
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

o EHT R
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S EERERETHAEBRARQATRHEME
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BEBE2BRG  HBERORES R

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND BEAEZEZRAE(E)

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

() Long positions in underlying shares and (m
debentures of the Company (Continued)

Interests in share options (Continued)
Notes:

1. The vesting period of the above share options is from their date
of grant until the commencement of their exercise period.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before 10 July
2012 on which the share options were granted was HK$2.41
per Share.

3. On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed

by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to approve the issue of bonus Shares on the basis
of one bonus Share for every ten existing Shares held by the
qualifying Shareholders on the record date (the “Bonus Issue”).
As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the
exercise price and the number of Shares to be allotted and
issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached to the
outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the
exercise price per Share after the said adjustments were made
on 30 July 2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price
per Share in relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012
was HK$2.404. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 29 July 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2021,
none of the Directors or chief executive (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests and/or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and/or short positions which are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above and the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below, during
the year ended 28 February 2021, (a) at no time was the
Company or a specified undertaking (as defined in the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) of the Company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate; and (b) none of
the Directors, their respective spouses nor their respective
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised any such
rights.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HEREFHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 28 February 2021, according to the register of W-_ETE-——& - A -+ H: ' RBREBELHL
interests in Shares and short positions of the Company HiE &M E336IEHEMFE 2 I MHREZ
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, the NXAEzZEifMArsdss Ty AT EE
following persons or corporations (other than the Directors (AR ATESZ &2 1TH A EBIN RIE©H
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short S BERHFEEERZ XA S MARE
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which BENHEEMEXVEE2NR F350 [ 1E
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the H I EE

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FTERRREMALRRG REEK
DZEBERKAE

(I) Interests and short positions of substantial N FEBRRABROREBROZES

shareholders in the Shares and underlying ERE
Shares
Long positions in Shares RGO ZIHE
Number of Shares and nature of interests
RADEERERER
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Interests of Share
Name of Beneficial controlled Other capital of the
Shareholders owner corporation interests Total Company
WEERRTE
RRER REHEBA ERVREZ Hit g & B BORFESIH
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces (‘Mr. Lee”) 54,561,000 36,600,000 280,500,000 371,661,000 52.65%
FIWEE(TERE] (Notes 182)  (Notes 3 & 4)
(Hrizi1ks)  (BiE3R4)
Stable Gain Holdings Limited 225,500,000 - — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Gain”) (Note 5)
(W 5t5)
Stable Profit Holdings Limited — 225,500,000 — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Profit”) (Note 5)
(1 725)
HSBC International Trustee Limited — — 225,500,000 225,500,000 31.94%
(*HSBC Trustee”) (Note 5)
(Ht55)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FTERRREMALRRG REEK
MzEERKAE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(I) Interests and short positions of substantial () FERRAROREBROZER
shareholders in the Shares and underlying R#XE(E)
Shares (Continued)
Long positions in Shares (Continued) BHziE (&)
Notes: o

Succex Limited, a corporation which was controlled and wholly
owned by Mr. Lee, held 33,000,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee
was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

Succex Limited (7% A &) /B 2 58 &£ 2§l &
2 & ¥ A)+54633,000,0000% K5 o Bt -
FTREERABRBZSROZER -

Mr. Lee was a founder and governor of Qing Yun Middle 2. SEFEHEREESERQAANTSTE]D
School Education Development Foundation Limited, which (EhEEARBEFEZEARAREEBAES
held 3,600,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be 3,600,000 f& 3 - Bk - FREWEBRR
interested in these Shares. BEZER D 2R -

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing 3. Stable Gain # 5225,500,0008% i% 15 + 8
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the BRAR A E 1T AR 4931.94% ° Stable
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain Gain & 2B B 2 17 I% /X A HSBC Trustee &
was registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company & ¥ B 2 A7 Stable Profit & £ & i+ &
wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of Lee HSBC Trustee & Lee Tze Bun Family Trust
Tze Bun Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary ([LTB Family Trusth(AEIBEFE) 2%+
trust, of which Mr. Lee was the founder (as defined in section A TE S A ALTB Family Trust 2 83 A
308 of the SFO) and an eligible beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee (TERBAHNHEEMEIEIEEE
was also the sole director of Stable Profit. Therefore, Mr. Lee %% A JR/AStable Profitz M —%& = -
was deemed to be interested in these Shares. A - ZEERBEBBZSRMDZERS -
The Charitable Foundation, of which Mr. Lee was the founder 4, BEHES TR AEAZEEESZAIHBA)
(as defined in section 308 of the SFO), held 55,000,000 Shares, (TEREBEANLEHEKNEI8KE) HE
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of 55,000,000/ & 5 * &R KRB B BT
the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be interested R AN #7.79% Rtk - TR AW AESR
in these Shares. ZERMZER -

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing 5. Stable Gain #F F225,500,000& M 7 » {5

approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain
was registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company
wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of the
LTB Family Trust, a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee was a
founder (as defined in section 308 of the SFC) and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was also the sole director of
Stable Profit. Therefore, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares in its capacity as trustee (other than
a bare trustee) and Stable Profit was deemed to be interested
in these Shares by virtue of the interest of its controlled
corporation (being Stable Gain). The respective interests
of Stable Gain, Stable Profit and HSBC Trustee were thus
duplicated.
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R
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FERRREMALIARDRAEBRR
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS ZEZERKAE(E)
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)
(1) Interests and short positions of other persons (Il) HEt A TRAROREERKR G =%
in the Shares and underlying Shares %A
Long positions in Shares RG22 HE
Number of Shares and nature of interests
ROHERERER
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Share
Name of Personal Spouse Other capital of the
Shareholders Note interests interests interests Total Company
WEEXRTE
RREMH it & BAES [TREE 5 Hit i & B BORTEIH
Ms. Lee Wing Kam 1 6,985,000 - 55,000,000 61,985,000 8.78%
Rowena Jackie
(“Ms. Lee")
FRELL ([Fht])
Ms. Cheung Man Ching 2 - 2,585,000 55,000,000 57,585,000 8.15%
Teresa (“Ms. Cheung”)
RXELL ([Rzt])
Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. 3 - - 55,000,000 55,000,000 7.79%
Cheung as trustees
of the Charitable
Foundation
Fut FXBEER
RZtHERZESER
ZEFEA
Ophorst Van Marwijk 4 35,454,000 — — 35,454,000 5.02%
Kooy Vermogensbeheer
NV, (“OVMK?)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Interests and short positions of other
persons in the Shares and underlying Shares
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Lee was interested in an aggregate of 61,985,000 Shares
(comprising 6,985,000 Shares personally held as beneficial
owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her, Mr. Li
and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.78% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

2. Ms. Cheung was interested in an aggregate of 57,585,000
Shares (comprising 2,585,000 Share held by her spouse as
beneficial owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her,
Ms. Lee and Mr. Li as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.15% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

3. Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung jointly held 55,000,000
Shares as trustees of the Charitable Foundation, representing
approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Therefore, all of them were deemed to be interested
in these Shares which were duplicated amongst their respective
interests.

4. OVMK holds 35,454,000 Shares, representing approximately
5.02% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2021, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) or corporation who had interests directly
or indirectly and/or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would be
required to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

FTERRREMALRRG REEK
MzEERKAE (&)

() EATRROREERD 2 #EH

kXA (&)

R172 2 E (&)

1. &4+ A 61,985,000 A% 15 & % A
%5 (856,985,000 I B A AR E 2
En#EEA REREFXBLERRK
TrtEhEERERe 2SR AXRBEEZ
55,000,000/% B %) + (A A AB B ETIRA
#418.78% °

2. K 2+ 1 A ££57,585,0000% I 15 o # A #
=m(BEHERBEAEZHEARAEZ
2,585,0000% J& 15 K i A £2 &= & £ R & 5k
BREERREES VSR AEXRBEZ
55,000,000/% B8 %) + (A AR AB B ETIRA
#18.15% o

8. ZFUL FABAERRLITERBEAR
% 2 Z 5 A #F % H55,000,0008 & 15 -
HARRBEBEHTRALNTIO  Fih K FH
BB RERZER D R MEES
BZBRMHiESEHESR -

4, OVMK ¥ 535,454,000/% i 17 © & R A
ANEIBEITIRA45.02% ©

BREXFEEEIN R-T_—F—
AZ+NRA ARARLEEERNE
ERMEMAL(RRRIEEH &
B A BRRIN SOEBRARR 2 B
REBEEROS  BAEREREZ LY
SEOIEXVEFE2N F30 B2 EX
BRAARBIRBRAEE AE
ERARARREBEZFAZLBEGIE
BMHEMEMFE < ELMzEE XK
R R AR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 22
July 2002, the Shareholders approved the adoption of a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Scheme was to enable the Board
to grant options to selected eligible persons (as defined
under the Scheme) as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The
total number of the Shares available for issue upon
exercise of all options granted under the Scheme must
not exceed 1,624,700 Shares, representing approximately
0.23% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the date of this report. The aggregate
number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible person (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of such limit must
be separately approved by the Shareholders with such
eligible person and his associates abstaining from voting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing
on such date on or after the date on which the option
is granted as the Board may determine in granting the
option and expiring at the close of business on such date
as the Board may determine in granting the option but
in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted). The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1.00. The full amount of the exercise price for the
subscription of the Shares must be paid upon exercise of
an option.

The price per Share payable on the exercise of an option
is to be determined by the Board provided always that it
shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant (which
is deemed to be the date of grant if the offer for the grant
of an option is accepted by the eligible person), which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and (jii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BIRETE (&)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company granted RIEZTE X262 _E——4F
14,100,000 and 17,440,000 share options to certain NA-_++tBABER-_ZE——F+A+H @
Directors and employees of the Company to subscribe AKATE TES KEEB ® F14,100,000%
for up to a total of 31,540,000 Shares on 27 June 2011  17,440,0001) 8% A% 4 - LA 3R 08 & % & &
and 10 July 2012 respectively. Particulars of such share 31,540,000/ ZT@E% - HE - ——F —
options and their movement during the year ended 28 A=+ N \HIEERN  WEERENT S
February 2021 were as follows: NEBHIT :

Adjusted number of share options Mofe 4/

BRE BRERE V1Y
Outstanding Adjusted
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at exercise
Name or Category ~ Date of share ~ Balance as at during the during the during the during the 28 February price per
of Participant options granted 1 March 2020 year year year Year 2021 Share  Exercise period
Notes 142) Note 3) (Note 4)
it it 13 et St
ZA-AZ . ZAZTNA aRgr
SEEELIER REBEREZAS % REARE  REATE  REREE  REARH HATE  BRORE AEHH
(Hi1k2) k) (i)
Hes
B
Directors (Note &) 27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021
B5(/0) 011568278 01456A278 22021567267
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
01165278 01566278 22021567268
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
01165270 01646278 22021564 26R
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
012578108 0145 7R10F 220224 7A9H
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
012478108 0156 7A10A Z202257A9R
10 July 2012 294,800 - - - - 294,800 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
012578108 0165 7A10AZ202257A9R
Sub-total 514,800 - - - - 514,800
Mgt
Employees 27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021
1| 1156A278 2014568278 2202156A268
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
01165270 015F6A278 22021567268
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
1165270 016456278 22021564 26H
10 July 2012 1,100 - - - - 1,100 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
012578108 0145 7R10F 220024 7A9H
10 July 2012 334,400 - - - - 334,400 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
012578108 0155 7A10A Z202257A9R
10 July 2012 774,400 - - - - 774,400 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
012578108 0165 7A10AZ202257A9A
Sub-total 1,109,900 - - - - 1,109,900
I
Total 1,624,700 - - - - 1,624,700
a3t
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. The respective vesting periods of the above share options are from
their respective dates of the grant until the commencement of their
respective exercise periods.

2. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before 27 June 2011
and 10 July 2012 on which the share options were granted were
HK$4.65 and HK$2.41 per Share respectively.

3. Upon the grant of 17,440,000 share options to eligible persons by the
Company on 10 July 2012, there were 1,960 shares options available
for grant under the Scheme. The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.

4. On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to
approve the Bonus Issue. As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments
were made to the exercise price and the number of Shares to be
allotted and issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached
to the outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the exercise
price per Share after the said adjustments were made on 30 July
2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price per Share in relation
to share options granted on 27 June 2011 was HK$4.730 while that in
relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012 was HK$2.404. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
July 2015.

5. For a detailed breakdown of the Directors’ interest in share options,
please refer to page 80 of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, for the purpose of the Listing Rules, the
following connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) subsisted or were agreed
between the Group and the connected person(s) (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company:

Pursuant to a purchase framework agreement dated
14 February 2020 (the “2020 Purchase Framework
Agreement”) entered into betweeni@{z & 5 (K &) B R
2 7] (Changxin Trading (Tianjin) Limited*) (“Changxin”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and{z
W (M) B R A7 (Xindie Commercial (Hangzhou)
Limited®) (“Xinde”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Changxin agreed to sell and Xindie agreed
to purchase certain products (including footwear and
handbags) of the Group’s brands for a term commencing
on 1 March 2020 and expiring on 28 February 2021.

*

For identification purpose only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The aggregate purchase price payable under the purchase
orders/purchase contracts entered into pursuant to the
2020 Purchase Framework Agreement for the year ending
28 February 2021 shall not exceed RMB19,000,000.
Details of the 2020 Purchase Framework Agreement
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
14 February 2020. The aggregate transaction amount
under the 2020 Purchase Framework Agreement was
approximately RMB2,009,000 for the year ended 28
February 2021.

Xindie is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
which Ms. Liao and her spouse together can control
the exercise of 33.3% of the voting power at its general
meeting (through a corporate shareholder of Xindie
owned by Ms. Liao and her spouse), and is therefore
a connected subsidiary of the Company. Xindie is
also a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Ms.
Liao and her spouse and is hence an associate of Ms.
Liao. Accordingly, Xindie is a connected person of the
Company and the transactions contemplated under
the 2020 Purchase Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As each of the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the respective
transactions contemplated under the 2020 Purchase
Framework Agreement is more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the respective transactions are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but are exempted from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

All Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed,
during the year ended 28 February 2021, the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(8) according the 2020 Purchase Framework Agreement,
on terms which are fair and reasonable, and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. According to
the Board, the auditor has issued an unqualified letter
to the Board, confirming that nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the continuing connected transactions disclosed in
this report (1) have not been approved by the Board; (2)
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
the provision of goods or services by the Group; (3) were
not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transaction;
or (4) have exceeded the annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed above, related party transactions
disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as defined in
the Listing Rules). The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 28 February 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that the indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (other than service contracts with
Directors as disclosed) concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 0.8% of the
total revenue from sales of goods for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 0.4% of the total revenue from sales of
goods for the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 69.6% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to approximately 16.2%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 40 to
68 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environmental, social and governance report of
the Company will be published as a separate report on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company within 3 months after the publication of this
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2021 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor

of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

By Order of the Board

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 May 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

g o
pwec

To the Shareholders of Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 106 to 209, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 28 February
2021,

e the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 28 February 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M ST A% B e

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Provision for impairment of inventories; and

o Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of retail stores.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B8 S A% B e 7

ERFASEHGE

Provision for impairment of inventories
Nature of the key audit matter

Refer to Notes 2.11, 4(d), 7 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 28 February 2021, the Group’s gross
inventories and provision for impairment of
inventories amounted to RMB193,663,000 and
RMB41,067,000, respectively.

As described in the accounting policies in Note
211 to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The Group is engaged in the retail and distribution
of footwear and accessories, and is subject
to changing consumer demands and fashion
trends. Management’s judgement is required
for assessing the appropriate level of inventory
provision in light of the current challenging retail
environment.

Management determines the appropriate
provisions for obsolete or slow-moving inventories
based on a detailed ageing analysis of inventories
and the Group’s estimates of projected sales
of aged inventories in consideration of various
factors, such as the marketability of aged
products and the market conditions.

We focused on this area due to the significant
value of inventories and the critical estimates
made by management on the provision for
obsolete or slow-moving inventories.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ERFASEHGE

Provision for impairment of inventories
(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

Our procedures for assessing the appropriateness
of management’s judgements applied in assessing
the provision for impairment of inventories included:

e  Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment processes,
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors, such as subjectivity of assumptions
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

o Evaluated management’s estimations made
in prior years by reference to the level of
inventories write-off during the year in relation
to stock loss.

o Evaluated analysis and assessment made by
management with respect to slow-moving
inventories.

° Performed audit analytics on stock holding and
movement data during the year and after year
end to identify products with indications of
obsolescence.

o Compared the net realisable value of
inventories sold subsequent to the year end to
the cost of inventories.

° Evaluated the future estimated sales through
of aged inventories with reference to historical
sales performance of similar products through
different sales channels, management
assessment of the relevant external market
information and the Group’s business
strategies identified through enquiries with
management.

e Tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s year end calculation of provision
for impairment of inventories.

Based on the above audit procedures performed,
we found that management’s assessments were
supported by the evidence that we obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B8 S A% B e 7

ERFASEHGE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores

Nature of the key audit matter

Refer to Notes 2.7, 2.8, 2.19, 7, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had recorded impairment loss of
RMB1,437,000 and RMB1,191,000 in respect of
its leasehold improvement in property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets respectively for
the year ended 28 February 2021.

The market capitalisation value is lower than the
net asset value of the Group as at 28 February
2021 and certain Group’s retail stores with
operations of more than one year were loss
making during the year. Management determines
each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit and carried out
impairment assessment for the retail store assets.
The recoverable amount of the assets of the retail
stores is determined by higher of fair value less
costs of disposal or value-in-use using discounted
cash flow projections based on the forecast
prepared by management with major assumption
such as gross profit and revenue growth rate.

We focused on this area because significant
estimation and judgement were involved in
determining the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets subject to impairment assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M ST A% B e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ERFASEHGE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores
(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

We evaluated and tested the impairment
assessment of the property plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the retail stores by
performing the following procedures:

e Obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and
assessment processes, assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors, such as complexity, subjectivity
of assumptions and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

e Enquired management on their basis of
identifying impairment indicators and
challenging the judgements made in the
identification of impairment indicators;

° Compared the forecasted sales performance
and estimated running costs of the retail
stores used in the value in use calculation to
their historical records;

e Enquired management in relation to key
assumptions in their value in use calculations
and evaluated the key assumptions (such as
gross profit, sales incremental rate) applied
by comparing them to our understanding of
latest market information and conditions and
historical information, where applicable;

° Recomputed the impairment loss calculation;

o Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain
the extent of change in the key assumptions
that would result in the retail store assets
being impaired and also considered the
likelihood of such a change in the key
assumptions arising.

Based on our work performed, we found the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets made by management to be
supported by available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Financial Highlights, Corporate
Information, Shareholder Information, Key Milestones,
Chairman’s Statement, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, Board of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Directors,
Five-Year Financial Summary and Investment Property (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which is expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to Audit Committee and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M ST A% B e

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M ST A% B e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 May 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
AR AR

For the year ended 28 February 2021
HE_ZT_—F_A_t+/\BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2021 2020

BZE HE
—E-—F 2T F
—A=+N\B —A=+hB8

IEEFE HFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

i AR®FTR ARETE

Revenue W 2= 5 594,217 736,387
Cost of sales RS DN 7 (238,894) (279,912)
Gross profit E 7 355,323 456,475
Other income H U A 6 8,833 7,589
Other gains/(losses), net Hible s (E18) F58 6 184,779 (1,594)
Write-back of impairment/ Lo EWBRBERERR,

(impairment losses) on trade OREEE) F8

receivables, net 7 1,220 (2,255)
Selling and distribution expenses 4% K& 2 #45 X 7 (239,785) (335,197)
General and administrative —ERITHRAX

expenses 7 (147,264) (153,182)
Operating profit/(loss) R (EBE) 163,106 (28,164)
Finance income, net WA - FRE 8 4,967 6,890
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRFTS R AT A (B 18) 168,073 (21,274)
Income tax expense Fr 5 i 32 12 (61,922) (9,046)
Profit/(loss) for the year FrmFl(E8) 106,151 (30,320)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable F& 15 R&EF| /(&5 18)

to:

— owners of the Company — RARAIEEFAA 106,154 (30,519)

— non-controlling interest — FEERER (3) 199
106,151 (30,320)

Earnings/(losses) per share AKRREERFBAEWN

attributable to the owners of the RN (&EB)

Company (express in RMB cents) (A R¥ %)

— Basic . 13 15.04 (4.32)

— Diluted — #E 13 15.04 (4.32)

The notes on pages 113 to 209 are an integral part of ZF113E2098 2 M ARG K HRER T A
these consolidated financial statements. nEZED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A EmBAR

For the year ended 28 February 2021

BHE_Z-—F_A-+ N \BILFE

Year ended  Year ended
28 February 29 February

2021 2020

Bz H=

—EB-—F CZET-IFTF
—A=Z+N\B Z—A=thH
ItEE HFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

fE AR®TFR ARETTT

Profit/(loss) for the year FR®RF,(E8) 106,151 (30,320)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) R T #E 2 Hib 2 mE
for the year, net of tax WA (E18)
ltem that will not be reclassified to HET@EHHEAGE
consolidated income statement BEamk2HEA
— Actuarial gains/(losses) on — RARBHEEZEE
retirement benefit obligation wm A (B 1) 27 44 (23)
ltem that will be reclassified to HREgAENMSERES
consolidated income statement EmkIEE
— Currency translation — [EHEF
differences (28,750) 23,714

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZEK A (E1E)
for the year 4B RE 77,445 (6,629)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEMGFREZEBR A (EE)

for the year, attributable to: R
— owners of the Company — ARAIREEFEA 77,448 (6,828)
— non-controlling interest — TR ER (3) 199

77,445 (6,629)

The notes on pages 113 to 209 are an integral part of Z113E 2098 2 M 5= A KB & R K T 7]
these consolidated financial statements. DEZED
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
O EEARR

As at 28 February 2021
R-ZE_—F_A_-+/\H

As at As at
28 February 29 February
2021 2020
® i
—EB-—F CZZET-FTF
—A=+N\B —BA=-+hH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ETt ARETT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment property KEME 15 2,360 2,360
Property, plant and equipment M - R REE 16 81,420 127,613
Right-of-use assets EHAEEE 17 34,439 37,969
Long-term deposits and R ER & KA RIE
prepayments 21 1,485 3,421
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISHIBE E 19 29,619 55,332
___149,823 226,695
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 152,596 273,093
Trade and other receivables B EWERIAE K A
JE Uy AR 18 21 57,329 53,529
Deposits and prepayments e kFERKIE 21 40,287 43,072
Pledged bank deposit EEBRITFER 22 661 719
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITER 22 754,882 508,555
__1,005755 878,968
Total assets BEE 1,155,078 1,105,663
Equity ¥ =
Capital and reserves attributable to ANA B #2535 B A FE1G
the owners of the Company P& 2 K {5 1
Share capital % A% 25 59,979 59,979
Reserves Gk
Proposed dividends BERE 28 294,589 —
Others HAth 28 643,109 891,452
997,677 951,431
Non-controlling interest FEEE RS 10,270 10,273
Total equity R 1,007,947 961,704

The notes on pages 113 to 209 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
i B E AR

As at 28 February 2021
R-E_—F_HA_+//\H

As at As at
28 February 29 February

2021 2020

—EB-—F CZZET-FTF
—A=Z+N\B Z—A=thBH

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTRT ARETIT

Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BRIEMSHRIEAE 19 24,197 24,757
Lease liabilities HEBRE 17 10,723 14,724
__.__%4920 39481
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables, other payables BSREMNERIE - Hib
and contract liabilities EREERENEE 24 95,543 85,341
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 16,184 17,635
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAasE 484 1,502
. M12211 104478
Total liabilities RER® _ 147131 143,959
Total equity and liabilities EEzRkaE®8E 1,155,078 1,105,663

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to ZF106E209B Z 4 @ B R KRN =

209 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 May ——S R A -+ WBEZEESH & I H
2021 and were signed on its behalf. TIHALTREKEE -

James Ngai Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky

152 7 & wmEY

Chairman Director

FE EZE

The notes on pages 113 to 209 are an integral part of Z113E 2098 ~ i X A AN & |k A~ 0]
these consolidated financial statements. DEZED o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o E L RS

For the year ended 28 February 2021
HE_ZT_—F_A_t+/\BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAARBEBAER
Non-
Share controlling
capital  Reserves Sub-totgl interest Total equity
R& B B FERER BER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Trn AR¥Txn
Balance at 1 March 2019 RZZE-NE=FA—A
2tk 59979 1112780 1,172,729 10450 1,183,179
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERA/(BR)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER)/ &R - (30,519) (30,519) 199 (30,320)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ Ef2ANA /()
Currency translation differences EHER - 23,714 23,714 - 23,714
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit  BREFEE 2 E
obligation BiE - (23) 23) - 23)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for & W = H(ER)/ BA
the year g8 _____ —___68&8 s 19 (6629
Transactions with owners BEBEALRS
Dividends ke - RUATO) RUATO QT (214840)
Balance at 29 February 2020 RZZE-FE-A-thH
Zmﬁff | _52,9_79_ o §91,4_52_ o 251,4_31_ o _19,2_73_ o 261,7_04_
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERA/(BH)
Profit/{loss) for the year Enail/ (HE) - 106,154 106,154 (3 106,151
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  Ef2AYRA /(E#E)
Currency translation differences ERER - (28,750) (28,750 - (28,750)
Actuarial gains on retirement benefit Lﬁwa METZBE
obligation Al - 44 44 - 44
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for  ERZEMA /(B8
the year ,@gﬁ _____ - _7Z,4_48_ o _7Z,4_48 ______ ( 3_) o _7Z,4_45_
Transactions with owners BEAAIRS
Dividends g - _(31,2_02_) o _(31,2_02_) _____ - _(31,2_02)
Balance at 28 February 2021 RZZE_—-F-A-F/\A
L% 59,979 937,698 997,677 10,270 1,007,947
The notes on pages 113 to 209 are an integral part of 2511 312095 ZHMERATBHRETT
these consolidated financial statements. 7 &z &5
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
maBlaimaR

For the year ended 28 February 2021
BHE_Z-—F_A-+ N \BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February

2021 2020

= HZE

- T e
—A=Z+N\B Z—A=thH
ILEE HFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

g AR®FTR ARETE

Operating activities REEBETD
Net cash generated from REXBEE R FHE

operations 23(a) 133,632 101,137
Overseas taxation paid BB IE (38,296) (17,085)
Interest paid SRR UPSS 17 (1,291) (1,785)

Net cash generated from operating &£ EKEEEL 2

activities ReFHE 94,045 82,267
Investing activities REEE
Interest income on bank deposits R 1T1F R 2 F B UK A 6,258 5,880
Other finance income H At B 75 UL A - 2,795
Purchases of property, plantand BB #ENXE

equipment 16 (6,800) (16,373)
Decrease/(increase) in bank HME=EAERER

deposits with initial term over A (&)

three months 23,200 (700)
Proceeds from disposal of TEME FRAEEER

property, right-of-use assets and &% & ¥ ¥

investment property 23(b) 212,091 70,500
Proceeds from disposal of plant 2R KRB

and equipment 23(c) 6,051 2,139
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BERBFROR L)

deposit 58 (54)

Net cash generated from investing & EHEL ZH & F5HE
activities 240,858 64,187

The notes on pages 113 to 209 are an integral part of Z113E 2098 2 Mf 5= A KB & R R T 7]
these consolidated financial statements. DEZED
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RO Bl ERER

For the year ended 28 February 2021
BHE_ZT- A+ N \BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2021 2020

5= HE
—BZ - C—ET_ETF
—A=+N\B —A=-+hB8

IEEE EFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

g AR®FTR ARETE

Financing activities Rl & E B
Principal element of lease MENRZEEHD

payments (22,356) (24,191)
Dividends paid =S (31,211) (214,388)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B 1 JF 2= I 4 25 % &

interest - (376)
Net cash used in financing BMEEHEA RS FR

activities (53,567) (238,955)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReMERRSEEEM,

and cash equivalents O ) 5 58 281,336 (92,501)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHT L FE

changes, net (11,809) 9,760
Cash and cash equivalents at FYIzRERERRA®

beginning of year 5 H 472,855 555,596

Cash and cash equivalents atend F& 2R KEFERB €
of year I8 H 22 742,382 472,855

The notes on pages 113 to 209 are an integral part of Z113E 2098 2 Mf 5= A KB & R R T 7]
these consolidated financial statements. DEZED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in trading and sales of footwear and
accessories. The Group mainly operates in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
property, which is carried at fair value.

o o B 5 R A

—-REH
RBHAERARABTEARRD R
EfE AR (GEIAEEDITERSE
RENEHZ2EGRHEE AEH
TEEFEAE - BAEMRMALE
Eg A

AR RRBREFMRIZBER
~ A H 3 E & & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda °

ARARNBEBEXRHMBIR AR
(TBERPT ) ER E™ -

BRBEREIN GaBBHHRERN
ARBZ75 -

FTEEABERME

MAENLEFGAVHBHRRIREANETE
SHERRFNRT X R AHRAIN
HERRCRMBEEZBRFEEME
% o

21 REEE
AEBZHEAMBRERTIIER
BRI AERMZAEE
AEEMEREENTE LY
B SR ) MFBCRFHEDD
FORENEREELRE - KA
MBEBRRIEELXNAERE
THAEHREDFEHLAE
Wi RFEIIFK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates

fmBLEE B B % A R — B
ZHBmRAERNE THEES
st EEETRARERA
KB 2 BREE L HH -
BhEEHREHAE IR EE M
ZEIS - HF R EIRE YR
KMEBEANZRREMAFH
B - MBS AP R -

are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amendments to standards and (@) ZXEBERWZIEGTZER
conceptual framework adopted by the REE2HESE
Group

The Group has adopted or early adopted
the following amendments to standards
and conceptual framework that have e iR EHENATE 8
been issued and effective for the Group’s MR ERZIER] 2 ER R
financial year beginning on or after 1 March BE S AE 28

2020:

KEBR-_E_TF=F—
B2 BHBZHBEE

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendment) Definition of Material
ERGTEUB1REERUERIR) EENTER

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 (Amendment)

EE G HEAEIW FEEUBHmE HAHASAERE
ERIET7IR K FI (BFTA)

Hedge Accounting

HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a Business
BB S R SB35 (B F] &) XN ESE

HKFRS 16 (Amendment) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
BB B S B SE165% (1B 7] AX) HERERBHEBESRR

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Financial Reporting 2018 Reporting
“E-N\FUBREZHSIER B 7% S 2 R BT SR 2R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Amendments to standards and
conceptual framework adopted by the
Group (Continued)

The amendments and conceptual
framework listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future
periods, except for the Amendment of
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2).

New standard and amendments to
standards not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
amendments to standards have been
published that are not mandatory for the
financial year ended 28 February 2021 and
have not been early adopted by the Group.
These new and amended standards are set
out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B R M
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTFEHEXRHBEGE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EREE(E)
(b) New standard and amendments to (b) 5K ERAZ F 5] 2E R R 15
standards not yet adopted (Continued) T ZER ()
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on or
after
15 8k 2 12
A2 g 5 B
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 March 2022
2018-2020
FREMEIER TE-N\FE_ZT_ZFRPZES —E-C
B 745 i 5 22 R FF 2 U =H—H
HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and Narrow-scope Amendments 1 March 2022
HKAS 37 (Amendment)
& BB % S 2E R SB35 NEENEET —E=-—
BB G ERFE165 & =HA—H
F375% (B ETA)
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 March 2023
or Non-current
BEAGHEBIR(BIIER) BAEBIERRBIIERD —TE-=F
=—H—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract 1 March 2023
BB E LRI TSR REER —TE-=F
=—H—H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined
(Amendment) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
ERVBEREENFEI0R KL REFHRABEQNRXKEGERFEZLHE A B H B
& & g E R 285k MEELHESHTE 8 R R FE
(B ETA)
These new standard and amendments WEMFEREE 2%
to standards are not expected to have A~ AR EE
a material impact on the Group in the BAsk AR s S HIR - & A]
current or future reporting periods and on BREARRXGEKE X%
foreseeable future transactions. &,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IEGHHREME(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

22 ERBREH

The Group has early adopted Amendment to
HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
retrospectively from 1 March 2020. The amendment
provides an optional practical expedient allowing
lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent
concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may
account for qualifying rent concessions in the
same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. The practical expedient only applies to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: a. the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments due on or before
30 June 2021; and c. there is no substantive change
to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent
concessions. Rent concessions totalling
RMB2,894,000 have been accounted for
as negative variable lease payments and
recognised in selling and distribution expenses
in the consolidated income statement for the
first-half of the year ended 28 February 2021,
with a corresponding adjustment to the lease
liability. There is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 March 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

2.3 WELQH
231 HERRH

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity where the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets
transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the
Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of
the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the:

° consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity;
and

e acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from
an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured
to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(o)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.2 Separate financial statements

2.3 WEAT(HE)
232 BB FH I

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend

KRB ARZ®RETIAK
AR EINER - KAE
RREEERRBMHERA - K
ATBEEERHE QR
B B 4 2% B 5T 8 e R AR

received and receivable. FEZEREA- BB R
AIZEBRD KRB LE
Wik B AEEEHRART A

©
BR

BERIMBAR REN
B BB - e AR BT B
AAEERBMEHEZE
R ARE EBYY

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period BHRERZEERABER D
the dividend is declared or if the carrying WIRELDFEE(BRERE)
amount of the investment in the separate EREMBHRR2EEE
financial statements exceeds the carrying B BMESEBAIREE
amount in the consolidated financial TR E RIE ©

statements of the investee’s net assets

including goodwill.

2.4 DEHRE
RESHENERHIRERTE
KERRERBEALREN A
X—H-BEEREERKLTMGE

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for KRESERENTELERREK
allocating resources and assessing performance ERBIERBEARARONITE
of the operating segments, has been identified £o

as the executive directors that makes strategic

decisions.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency and the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through the profit
or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.5 B E(H)

(c) Group companies (c) FELF

The results and financial position of all
the group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidated, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A A B i R P
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBEEHE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Investment properties 26 REWHE

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that are not occupied by the Group.

Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each financial year
end by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement as part of a
valuation gain or loss in “other gains/(losses),
net”.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “other
gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

FTESEHABRMEE)

27 WX HEBERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised
when replaced. All other repair and maintenance
costs are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, at the following annual
rates:

Buildings 2-4%

B¥ 2-4%
Leasehold improvements

HEEE

Plant and machinery 10%

e R RE 10%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33.3%
R REE 20%-33.3%
Motor vehicles 20%

HE 20%

Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not
amortised.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amounts and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

le saunda holdings Itd.

2

A o A 25 AR Mk

FTESEHABRMEE)

2.7

2.8

annual report 2021

KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

127

MR- BERREGER)

WEEREESREMtak
O & %8 - HBRmEE B0 ROR
ZHAWE & %8 (H:22.8)

HEZBEIZASHIEEAR
BEERBEMNEZERET LN

RABaRER -

FMBEERME
EBEEERNBELEEMHAE
PR B RN AR T (E AT BE DR K
O] B #E TR E R E o R E BB
REEZFREEBLDEATRED
TR ERER A NEEHE
REERFEIBRRZK AR
ERE_EFEFTNRRE - RF
B ER - & E &5 AR 5
BeRnEReELEMN)ZR
BERMAG  -FMBEELR
MER  $REHRSHRES
BB B E 2 AT RE M -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERE

2

S 785 e M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets

@)

(b)

©

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the category of those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
The Group classified its debt instruments
as financial assets at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

©

(@)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses), net”
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
of the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.
See Note 2.9 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade and other
receivables for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year
comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

FTESEHABRMEE)
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(Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and joint venture operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable consolidated income
statement. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value are
determined assuming the properties will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

FTESEHABRMEE)
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(Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Provisions (Continued)

FTESEHABRMEE)

217 #16 (1F)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time
when a group entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(a) Sales of goods — retail and
concessionaire sales

Revenue from sales of goods including
retail and concessionaire sales is
recognised when control of the products
has transferred, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered
to customers and title has passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Sales of goods — internet sales

Revenue from the sale of goods on the
internet is recognised at the point that
the control of the inventory have passed
to the customer, which is the point of
dispatch. Transactions are settled by credit
or payment card. Provisions are made for
internet credit notes based on the expected
level of returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.

2.19 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Leases (Continued)

FTESEHABRMEE)

219 & (&)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability, any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and restoration
costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases
of store premises and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets comprise point of sale
machines.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see Note
8 below. Any other interest income is included in
other income.

2.21 Employee benefits

@)

(b)

Employee benefit entitlements

Salaries, bonuses, annual leave and the
cost of other benefits to the Group are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by the employees of
the Group.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory
provident fund scheme which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme and
available to all Hong Kong employees. Both
the Company and the staff are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant
income with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per
month to the MPF scheme. Staff may
elect to contribute more than the minimum
as a voluntary contribution. The Group’s
contributions to this mandatory provident
fund scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group also contributes to pension
schemes established by municipal
governments in respect of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of
the Group. Contributions to these schemes
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

FTESEHABRMEE)

2218/ A ()

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability or asset recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

2.22 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

e excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued) 2.2 HBER2R 5 (E)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.

If the vested equity instruments are later lapsed
and are not exercised, the corresponding
amount recognised for services received from
an employee is transferred from employees’
share-based compensation reserve to retained
earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Dividend distribution

FTESEHABRMEE)

2.23% B 2Kk

3.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
the Company’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, and
no longer of the discretion of the Company,
where appropriate.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (included foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.
The directors provide principles for an overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong and Mainland China with most
of the transactions settled in HKS,
US$ and RMB. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising mainly
from the exposure of HK$ and US$
against RMB as the majority of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities
including deposits in banks, trade
receivables and trade payables are
denominated in HK$ and US$.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

At 28 February 2021, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been approximately
RMB255,000 higher/lower (2020:
loss for the year would have been
approximately RMB536,000 lower/
higher) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of HK$ denominated deposits in
banks, trade receivables and trade
payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 28 February 2021, if US$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been approximately
RMB4,178,000 higher/lower (2020:
loss for the year would have been
approximately RMB3,739,000 lower/
higher) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of US$ denominated deposits in banks
and trade payables.

The foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of other foreign
currencies is considered to be
minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities except for the deposits
in banks, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 22. The interest rate
risk is considered to be insignificant.

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the trade and
other receivables (Note 21), pledged bank
deposits and cash and bank balances
(Note 22) included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A A B i R P
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEREKREREGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIEBRREZEE)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)

Sales to retail customers are made in TEXPHNEENR K
cash or via major credit cards. The Group FEFERANET - AEE
has policies in place to ensure that sales FEBRERRERESL
of products on credit terms are made BROINEPUEEAR
to customers with an appropriate credit HEER MAEE=
history and the Group performs periodic EHFEEPAEEMRMR -
credit evaluations of its customers. The AEERE ERESGWHNET
Group’s concessionaire sales through iHE — M A R % E B #E30

department stores are generally collectible
within 30 to 60 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit
terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

Substantially all the deposits with banks
are held in international financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institution and management does
not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivable.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables has been grouped based
on the ageing and shared credit risk
characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B i R P
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEREKREREGE)
(CONTINUED)

31 HEEEREE(E)
(b) =5 (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
36 months before 28 February 2021 and
29 February 2020, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
on an individual or collective basis, to settle
the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance on
collective basis as at 28 February 2021

TREEREGE)
BHEBREER_T——
F_A-tNBR-Z_F
F-AZ-t+NAA36MEARN
& B S B IA K HI
BAEMMERELEEESE
ME - BELEEBEXD
LA URREEE
BAERBERNEL XN
F& U 5K BE 1 B & AT A0 BT BE
HEERBRERZEM -

EUER L BRERER
%%E@Eﬂéﬁﬁﬁl\ i\

and 29 February 2020 were determined as ——F#=-HA=+N\H &:
follows for trade receivables: = _‘g F-A=-+NH"
%EEH&ZEEEJEHEL?‘E%FEE
U N
Over
1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90 days
Current pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
BH  1Z30X  31Z60X 61F90K 90KRM L @t
RZB=-f RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2021 ZAZtNA AE¥Tn ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥Tn ARET:n
Expected loss rate kil b 0.5% 0.9% 1.5% 4%  92.8%
Gross carrying amount BEEE
— trade receivables - BAENER 48,468 4,911 994 491 6,013 60,877
Loss allowance BRER 261 42 15 2 5,583 5,924
Over
1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90days 90 days
Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
il al ki il
M8 120K 3E60K 61E0X  WRME st
S 42 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
As at 29 February 2020 _ﬂ_ﬂlﬁ ARETT ARETR AR%Tn ARETH ARETR ARETR
Expected loss rate kil g b 16% 4.9% 11.99% 311% 95.0%
Gross carrying amount BEAEE
— trade receivables - B5RNEE 40,534 7,345 3,340 447 6592 58258
Loss allowance BRER 629 308 378 139 6,260 7,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Bt % B B B B ()

31 MEEREEGE)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREEREE)

The loss allowances for trade receivables
as at 28 February 2021 and 29 February
2020 reconcile to the opening loss
allowances as follows:

R—E-_—F=_A=-+N\H

—ZE-TF-_A=thHB "
E 5 e W BR TA B 18 % 5
Y EEEFESIROT

2021 2020
—E--F ZE-FTHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR®BTr ARETT
At beginning of year F 1) 7,709 5,454
Write-off as uncollectable sE A A] W Bl & BR (565) -
Write-back on recovery of bad & [a] 2 BF % @]
debts 7 (1,231) (332)
Increase in loss allowance FALEGFEEER
recognised in the FRERNEE
consolidated income A {5 38 0
statement during the year 7 11 2,687
At end of year F 1R 5,924 7,709

EERANEM SR E
EME BEBEL2ERYH
BFNELBOXLER
IR B HEREK
RARHEEERRY KERE
EIN - R ERE DR IE
1R2EABRREESERETE -
ZEHEEBBELTEK -

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is
immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Bt % B B B B ()

31 MEEREEGE)

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash, which is
mainly generated from the operating cash
flow, and the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in

(c) Liquidity risk (c) nEE=ZEE

BEENRDESERE R
ERERARAS(XEH
REFAGRELE) ARE
BRABNEAZEERE
RERmAHEHRES - K
SEZNEFTHANE
AEFERE REER
8] Bie 588 1

TERBGAEENMBEE
RAKEEEAMNIHA
B &R T B A o3 A A5 40 R 2
HER  KAMBESE
BRENKTRAEST - M

RITHE & ERK 128
AREHSENESGRESRNE

the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months

equal their carrying balances as the impact FREAER o
of discounting is not significant.
Between Between
Less than 1fand2 2and5 Over
1 year years years  5years Total
“EE  WEE ]
-EHR MECH LM BBIE )
RZBZ-f RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
As at 28 February 2021 ZAZt+N\H ARBTT AR%Tn ARETR AR%TR AR%TR
Trade and other payables BIEAEER
H i EATERIE 71,898 - - - 71,898
Lease liabilities MEaR 17,061 6,613 4,638 63 28,375
88,959 6,613 4,638 63 100,273
Between  Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—£F MEE \
—E0A MECH hE¢H  BARE B
RZT-TF RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
As at 29 February 2020 Z“AZtnA ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
Trade and other payables BEHRNEER
B it e R E 66,056 - - - 66,056
Lease liabilities %HEE% 18,654 4y695 7y536 3,381 34,266

84,710 4,695 7,536 3,361 100,322
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

Bt % B B B B ()

3.2 EXERER

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
make adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
obtain new bank borrowings, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital
structure as at 28 February 2021:

AEBEEEREEN UREXR
SERREIFERLE  BER
K B AR D E R MR R LA e
FAEERREEAEBARK

AEBEREARE  LRE
RERREHPELHAE - B
RABABEANGE AKEN
EHEBERTHRRORE 28
REBHRITER BEXERE
PR B ATHRIAR -

RZZT-_—F-_A=+N\B" T
REREBHNERNGEE DA
T

2021 2020

—B-—-F —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBFT

Cash and cash equivalents RekERREIER 742,382 472,855
Bank deposits with initial term over HiR & =8 A IRTF %

three months 12,500 35,700

Pledged deposits BEEFRITER 661 719

Net cash position IR 755,543 509,274

Total equity B 1,007,947 961,704

Total capital BEXR 1,763,490 1,470,978

As at 28 February 2021, the Group maintained
a net cash position of RMB755,543,000 (2020:
RMB509,274,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, and will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

The impairment loss for non-financial assets,
comprising property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, is recognised as the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 2.7, 2.8 and
219. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use, which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at
each balance sheet date, from the disposal of
the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting
the costs to disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for these taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimation at each balance sheet
date.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The executive directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from a retail perspective and
assess the performance of operations on a
geographical basis (Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively). The reportable segments are
classified in a manner consistent with the information
reviewed by the executive directors.

The executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
reportable segment loss. This measurement basis
excludes other income (excluding government
incentives), other gains/(losses), net (excluding gain
on early termination of leases), finance income, net,
and unallocated items.

Segment assets mainly exclude deferred income
tax assets and other assets that are managed on a
central basis.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and other
liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customer is
located, and total assets and capital expenditure are
based on the country where the assets are located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WaEkosBER(E)

(CONTINUED)

()  The segment information provided to the () MPATESFREEAHZ_-ZF
executive directors for the reportable segments ——F A+ NRBIEEFEEZA
for the year ended 28 February 2021 is as ERHoBrzoBEERT:
follows:

Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
K B EERRM an
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR¥EFR
Revenue from external customers MAKEZ W& 583,574 10,643 594,217
Reportable segment loss NERNEER (13,167) (8,185) (21,352)

Other income (excluding government A AT BEBFRE)

incentives) 68
Other gains, net (excluding gain on early  Eft iz - FE(TRERA

termination of leases) RIERERNYR) 184,141
Finance income, net HBREA 38 4,967
Unallocated items AHEIEE 249
Profit before income tax RS T AR M 168,073
Income tax expense FER (61,922)
Profit for the year 7 7 106,151
Depreciation e 24,650 4,378 29,028
Impairment losses on property, plantand  #1% - B ERRERESR

equipment 1,437 - 1,437
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets f FEEEREEE 797 394 1,191

Additions to non-current assets (other ~ FRBEERE GETFEH
than deferred income tax assets) HEERMN 20,937 4,474 25,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B 5 R B
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WakoEERGE

(CONTINUED)

(i)  The segment information provided to the iy MPATESTREEAHZ_Z
executive directors for the reportable segments —EF_HA-thBLEFEZA
for the year ended 29 February 2020 is as ERHoBrzoBEERT:
follows:

Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
LGN BB IR k]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ANRETT
Revenue from external customers MAEEZ W& 705,621 30,766 736,387
Reportable segment loss NERNEER (10,235) (16,479) (26,714)

Other income (excluding government = NN R R )

incentives) 81
Other losses, net (excluding gain on early E &2 - FE(TRERA

termination of leases) RIERERNYR) (1,814)
Finance income, net BEBRA FE 6,890
Unallocated items APEIER 283
Loss before income tax BEERISE (21,274)
Income tax expense PR (9,046)
Loss for the year FRER (30,320)
Depreciation e 39,471 10,919 50,390
Impairment losses on property, plantand 1% B ERXEHESR

equipment 9,182 792 9,974
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets f FEEERBEEE 6,339 5,607 11,946

Additions to non-current assets (other ~ FRBEERE GELFEH

than deferred income tax assets) BEEERM 32,074 - 82,074
For the years ended 28 February 2021 and HE S —®#—_A-_+N\BE
29 February 2020, revenues from external —_E_ETEF_A-THABILEF
customers are mainly derived from the Group’s E AR ETEEREZWZEEREH
own brands, le saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA ANEEB A @ le saunda - le
ROSA, PITTI DONNA and CNE. saunda MEN * LINEA ROSA -

PITTI DONNA K CNE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B Ak B
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WBERTEER(H)

(CONTINUED)

(i) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities iy RZZE-_—F_A-_+NH =&
as at 28 February 2021 by reportable segment EEZARHmoBEE D B E
is set out below: LBESWHET:

Mainland Hong Kong

China and Macau Total

o A B EBRAM am

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR®ETR ARETR

Segment assets PREE o TMgs 327,433 1,099,238

Deferred income tax assets EREMEHEEE 29,619

Unallocated assets APREE 26,221
Total assets per consolidated GAREERBRAERE

balance sheet 1,155,078

Segment liabilties AREE _ 111881 10,805 122,186

Current income tax liabilities EHRERAR 484

Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHEAR 24,197

Unallocated liabilities APRAE 264
Total liabilities per consolidated REEERBRCAGBLES

balance sheet 147,131
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B R R M RE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHEkoBEERE)

(CONTINUED)

(iv) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities vy RZE-_TF-_A-t+hH K
as at 29 February 2020 by reportable segment EEZARHmoBEE D B E
is set out below: FBESTHT:

Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
N B R RM B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTL ARETTL ARETTL
Segment assets AREE o T3pA 240,541 1,014,190
Deferred income tax assets EREMEHEEE 55,332
Unallocated assets APREE 36,141
Total assets per consolidated GAEERBRAELE
balance sheet 1,105,663
Segment liabilties ARAE _ o feors 14,885 117,160
Current income tax liabilities BHMEHEE 1,502
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHEAR 24,757
Unallocated liabilities rArEaE 540
Total liabilities per consolidated RREERBRCAGBLES
balance sheet

143,959



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHEESBEBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(v) The analysis of revenue from external customers vy AEBRAMESFEE D ZXK
by geographical segments is as follows: BINABPREIAT :
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue g AR® TR ARET T
Mainland China H B K 583,574 705,621
Hong Kong BE 8,890 27,904
Macau R 1,753 2,862
Total fast 594,217 736,387

BE-_ZT-_—F-_A=-+/N\BXK
—E-TEE-_A-THhBILEE -
WHEESE-IIAKXFPETER
EAREBWZFI0%TH A FAIR
% °

For the years ended 28 February 2021 and 29
February 2020, there was no transaction with a
single external customer that amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue.

(vi) NEBEIZRAMIBEDEE D2k
RBEEEEMBSHREAEER

(vi)  An analysis of the non-current assets (other
than deferred income tax assets) of the Group

by geographical segments is as follows: INZ DT :
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Non-current assets (REBEE AR¥® TR ARET T
Mainland China B K B 48,258 92,779
Hong Kong BE 3,893 5,403
Macau B FT 67,553 73,181
Total mEt 119,704 171,363
le saunda holdings Itd. annual report 2021
KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

155




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

production plant located in Shunde was resumed by the local
government at a compensation of RMB195,318,000. Taking
into account of the direct expenses, a gain of approximately
RMB162,717,000 was recorded and included in the gains
on disposal of property, right-of-use assets and investment
property for the year ended 28 February 2021.
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BR A B 5 R B
6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ 6 HMWARHMKzE (EHE]):
(LOSSES), NET F
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Other income H it A
Gross rental income from investment REME ZHE2 B A
property 68 81
Government incentives (Note (a)) AT # B (1 22 (a) 8,765 7,508
8,833 7,589
Other gains/(losses), net Hthh = /(E#E) B8
Net exchange gains/(losses) (Note (b)) &5 s (B 1R) -
(M D) 9,392 (7,457)
Gains on disposal of property, right-of-use HEWE FREEE
assets and investment property RIZE M F W=
(Notes (c) and 23(b)) (B 7t (c) R 23(b)) 174,749 5,643
Gains on early termination of leases RAKIAESEOWR
(Note 17) (Biat17) 638 220
184,779 (1,594)

Notes: Wt -

(@)  Government incentives mainly represent grants received from @ BMEMEERENRTBENSEBBFK
the PRC and Hong Kong governments in subsidising the MM E  ARERASEEN —REE
Group’s general operations and employee salaries. There are LEEF©  SLHHSREMTERBE
no unfulfiled conditions or other contingencies attaching to B {68 4 Sk L Bl A IR 1 o
these grants.

(b)  Net exchange gains/(losses) arose from the settlement of (b) REINEFHERZEERRFREXRKBE
transactions denominated in foreign currencies and from the NN E2EKEERABERBREELER
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and AREIEEBR)TEE 2B X W (FiE)
liabilities, including inter-company balances, denominated in FEE o
foreign currencies.

() In December 2020, the land and buildings of the Group’s ) RZZEZTF+_A #HATBNFBEASE

EURIBEENBREN LI REF  #ES
% A A R #195,318,0007T ° R & & &
A& B EH A RK162,717,0007T -
YEHABE-_T-_—F-_RA=-_+N\RBIt
FELEYE FRABEEREBREWENR

%R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7
Expenses included in cost of sales, write-back of
impairment/(impairment losses) on trade receivables,
net, selling and distribution expenses, and general

BMHEIBZHAX

AT AHER AN B 5 R U R TR R {8 B
BCRERBRE) F8E HERDH
AXM—REITBRAX 2T :

and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

2021 2020
—EC--F —T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Auditors’ remuneration %R &
— Audit services — RER% 1,503 1,814
— Non-audit services — FEZERE 330 225
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREERE
equipment (Note 16) (Btit16) 14,781 25,348
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 17) £ BEZEFE (F1:£17) 14,247 25,042
(Gain)/loss on write off/disposal of plant and  #fi$8 /& # 28 I 3%
equipment (Note 23(c)) (W z%),/ BB (H 2250) (5,072) 8,869
Cost of sales 3B AR 238,894 279,912
Expenses relating to short-term, low-value MHKERERS
leases and variable lease payments REEHERTE
(Note 17) MERRKAF17) 93,802 117,998
Freight charges BE 6,446 7,038
Postage and express charges BERRES 2,220 3,418
Advertising and promotional expenses EEREBRE 15,883 21,890
Employee benefit expenses (including EERNAX (BEESHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (Bt i29) 196,655 247,506
Impairment losses on inventories, net GFEREBE F8 7,119 14,114
(Write-back of impairment)/impairment losses & 5 & Uz 8= 78
on trade receivables, net CRERRE),/RE
R (1,220) 2,255
Impairment losses on property, plant and M - KERE
equipment (Note 16) WEEBEH Z16) 1,437 9,974
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets CHAREEREERR
(Note 17) (Writ17) 1,191 11,946
Direct operating expenses arising from BROHSWAZKEME
investment property that generated rental FMEACEERERY
income (Note 15(a)) (Kt it15(a) 18 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 25 A Mk

8 FINANCE INCOME, NET

8 HMBWA FH

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥® T ARET T
Interest income on bank deposits RITHE 2 F B U A 6,258 5,880
Interest expense on lease liabilities HERBZMEXH
(Note 17) (Biet17) (1,291) (1,785)
Other finance income H At B 75 e A - 2,795
4,967 6,890
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEGABXX(EREEZ=E#MS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2021 2020
—B-—-F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥® TR ARET T
Wages and salaries ITELRF® 183,473 203,681
Staff welfare and other benefits B T4&F & 2 h=Eah 6,001 15,382
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ~ BKE& KK — REMH K
(Note) stEl(f7 at) 7,181 28,443
196,655 247,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Note:

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate
in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) which is a
defined contribution scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under independently administered
funds. Contributions to the schemes by the employers and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement schemes administered
and operated by municipal governments. The Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of the employees which are calculated on
certain percentages of the average employee salaries as agreed by
the municipal governments. Such retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

Retirement benefit scheme costs amounting to RMB7,181,000 (2020:
RMB28,443,000) were paid by the Group during the year. Forfeited
contributions totalling RMB348,000 (2020: RMB606,000) were
refunded and credited in the employee benefit expenses during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B 5 R B
10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 EE2RARESR
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () EERESTHRAEME

emoluments
Pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong BIEE B(AEIEGYFEB22E)
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies EI8IF(AF(HEEEN T E
(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of BB BN EE22GE) & £
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and the B - BUEEA&ESITTHRAES
Listing Rules, the emoluments paid or payable NERNDS Yk FEIRE ZH BT -

to every director and the chief executive for the
year are as follows:

2021
“E--%
Salary,  Employer’s
bonus, other  contribution
allowances to retirement Share option

and benefits benefit benefits
Fees in kind scheme (Notg) Total
e R4
Eth2ER  EXEA: BRERA
Be ENflG HE Lt (Hri) b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name #e AE®TR  AR®TR AR%TR AR%TR  AR%TR
Executive directors YrES
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky BEHLL - 2,438 16 - 2,454
Ms. Liao Jian Yu Bi#mut - 1,794 - - 1,794
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter ExHEE - 422 15 - 437
Non-executive directors  ¥#H7TEZ
Mr. James Ngal fRRESEE 186 - - - 186
Independent non-executive LK HTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon kB EE 186 - - - 186
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PEELE 186 - - - 186
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRYRE 186 - - - 186
744 4,654 31 - 5,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 ES2EANRER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (@) EZSRESTHRAEMS (&)
emoluments (Continued)
2020
g 32
Salary, Employer's

bonus, other contribution
allowances  toretirement  Share option
and benefits benefit benefits
Fees in kind scheme (Notg) Total
R AR
Btk EERKE  BRERN

ik ENNE TRl i) &5
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Name #e ARETT ARETn AREFn ARETn ARETrn
Executive directorand ~ HTEERTHAR
chief executive
Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary 1yt
(resigned on 16 Qctober (R=2-NE&
2019) TATABERE) - 1,269 10 - 1279
Executive directors UTEE
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky RBHLL - 2,504 16 - 2,520
Ms. Liao Jian Yu Bi#nat - 1,829 21 - 1,850
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter ZxErE
(appointed on 22 January (RZB-%F
2020) -A-1=H
EZf) - 79 3 - 82

Non-executive directors  FHTEE
Mr. James Ngal s 212 - - - 212
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces e

(resigned on 16 October (R=Z-h%&

2019) TATAHEE) - = - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon KB LA 212 - - - 212
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George ~ RBEEE 212 - - - 212
Mr. Hui Chi Kiwan FRBEE 212 - - - 212

848 5,681 50 = 6,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)
Note:

Share option benefits are non-cash compensation which were
determined based on the fair value of share options granted to
the relevant directors at the date of grant and recognised over
the vesting period (Note 26).

No other emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director’s
other services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the company or its subsidiary undertaking during the year
ended 28 February 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 28 February 2021, no
retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by the directors in respect of their services as
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
or other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking through defined benefit
pension plans (2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 28 February 2021, no
payments or benefits in respect of termination of
directors’ services were paid or payable, directly
or indirectly, to the directors (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 28 February 2021, no
consideration was provided to or receivable
by third parties for making available directors’
services (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 28 February 2021, there
are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporates and connected entities (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B R M
11 SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 11 SREEAEMS
(@) Five highest paid individuals () EEEEHFAL
The directors’ emoluments presented above EXZENME $ @Jﬂ & B /8 E A
include the emoluments of 2 (2020: 3) highest ER -_Z(ZEZEF :=F) &%
paid individuals in the Group. The emoluments m%ﬁ/\:tﬁ’jﬁ}ﬂi BB TI=%
of the remaining 3 (2020: 2) highest paid (_ T TR ) RaH AL
individual during the year ended 28 February E!z?;_;:—ﬁ_ﬂ_‘l’}\lﬂ
2021 was: JJ:EFEZ%F@HZ% :
2021 2020
—B--—-F —ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Salaries, bonus, other allowances and ¥ B4 Hib)EBh
benefits in kind &E%?’FUE 3,063 2,193
Employer’s contributions to retirement EXRASFTEMER
benefits scheme 48 32
3,111 2,225
Emolument band Number of individuals
e E AE
2021 2020
—E--F —ZT-TF
RMB500,001 — RMB1,000,000 500,001 T A R &
1,000,0007T A R #& 2 1
RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 1,000,001t AREE
1,500,0007T A R ¥ - 1
RMB1,500,001 — RMB2,000,000 1,500,001t ARB =
2,000,0007C A R ¥ 1 -
None of the directors or the five highest paid ERN REEXRERSHFA
individuals waived or agreed to waive any +HED );5( %3 o [ & HE (T {7
emoluments during the year (2020: Nil). e (—E-—ZFF:|)o
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11

12

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 11
(CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments by (b)
band

The senior management’s emoluments fell within
the following bands:

Emolument band

EREBASHE(H)
EREEASTHEE

EREEABZHMEERNT

Number of individuals

¥ & E AE
2021 2020
—s-—F —E-TF
Nil — RMB500,000 OTARKEZE
500,0007C A R #& 1 1
RMB500,001 — RMB1,000,000 500,001t AR 2
1,000,0007C A R #& 1 1
RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 1,000,001 A R =
1,500,0007C A R ¥ - 1
RMB1,500,001 — RMB2,000,000 1,500,001 T A R#EZ
2,000,0007C A R & 1 -
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FiBHXZH
The amount of income tax charged to the RieBRaRPHRZAENREE
consolidated income statement represents: y=3
2021 2020
—E--F —ZTTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
Current income tax EHIREH
— Hong Kong profits tax — BANGEN - =
— People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”) — FREARAME ([HE])
corporate income tax TEMSEH 36,935 13,180
Deferred income taxation (Note 19) EEFSHIB N Z19) 24,987 (4,134)
61,922 9,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 0 BB A
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12 FrEB X H (&)
The PRC corporate income tax is provided for on the $’$ & [ H B A B Al J53225% (—
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC at 25% TR F 5% CHBRBEMBR
(2020: 25%). REFH o
The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% EAFEH ETHEB X A165% (- =
(2020: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong profits —ZF :16.5%) c AR AEE }7\@1
tax has been made in the financial statements as the —E—F-AZ+tNBEZZEZ
Group does not have any assessable profit arising in FEZH=+h EIU:@E]I?%E’\\E/%E
Hong Kong during the years ended 28 February 2021 EERERBEEBF  WHBRERA
and 29 February 2020. WESREEMNSTIELREE -
The applicable rate of Macau complementary F'EJ }iﬁ BHFEHREBHREE12% (=
tax is 12% (2020: 12%). No provision for Macau TE_FF12%)c AR AEBEREZE
complementary tax has been made in the financial B F_AZtNHERZZE_E
statement as the Group does not have any FZ_A-tTHhBULEFETERBMNE
assessable profit arising in Macau during each of the EEMERHREHN  WEERERN
two years ended 28 February 2021 and 29 February 7 4 HL R PSP 1S e B VR B o
2020.
The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before K& B KA RS R (& TE)Z
income tax differs from the theoretical amount that MIBEHEER AN EFE 2E R
would arise using the applicable tax rate as follows: B EZBWT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETB R AT Z @ F
(B#8) 168,073 (21,274)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates 12 3% (8 3 [ 0 N8 A Ay AR
applicable to profits in the respective Wi ERFENHIE
geographical areas 48,898 (3,526)
Income not subject to tax AN A (5,852) (1,300)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes DL Y3 ) 8,073 10,677
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax KHERELMEHRIBEE
asset was recognised ZHIBEE 4,463 3,929
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax FRALEAAERZHE
losses B8 (2,151) (2,836)
Withholding tax B 8,491 2,102
Income tax expense FTiE R 61,922 9,046
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12

13

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

There was no tax charge relating to components of
other comprehensive income for the year ended 28
February 2021 (2020: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE
Basic

Basic earnings/(losses) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of

A o A 25 AR Mk

12 FTEH X H(E)

BE_T—F_A-1+tN\BHLFE"
Iﬁﬁ@zﬁﬂﬁl]\*ﬁ DZHBAX (=

13 BREN (FHE)
2EX
BRERNEN (BB DEAR
F”*Hﬁ/\ﬁ%‘{ﬁm%'/(EEE%E)I@LA
FAE BT EBR ZINEFYHE

ordinary shares in issue during the year. g o
2021 2020
—B-—-F —E-EF
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the ARRIERFBEAEL
Company (RMB'000) w A, (B E)
(AR®TFT) 106,154 (30,519)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B %178 % 2 fn#g
in issue ("000) T8 (TAT) 705,895 705,895
Basic earnings/(losses) per share FREAREF (E8)
(RMB cents) (AR%7) 15.04 (4.32)
Diluted B8

For the years ended 28 February 2021 and 29
February 2020, the Company had share options
outstanding which were anti-dilutive potential
ordinary shares, the diluted earnings/(losses) per
share equals basic earnings/(losses) per share.

le saunda holdings Itd.

§_;:—¢:H:+AE&:§
EF_AFTHABLEFE  AQ
Zﬁ*ﬂﬁ%kﬂﬁﬁ& ﬁkﬁ
REBEZFE SRESEHN (&
BIHEREBREKREZAR /(JE’J—TE\ °

annual report 2021

KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

167




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

14 DIVIDENDS 14 BRE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
No interim dividend mHRHER S
(2020: Nil) (ZZE=ZF: 8\) - =
Interim special, paid, of HK5.0 cents B BRI AR B
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share TR L@ RS.0% L
(_7_7¢ =) 32,204 -
Final, proposed, of HK15.0 cents ZAHRE

HX @HYJSO/%MI
(ZE-ZF: &) 88,377 =
EEARERRE

(2020: Nil) per ordinary share

Final special, proposed, of HK35.0 cents

(2020: Nil) per ordinary share T E i A 385.0/5 1L
(ZT-ZF: §) 206,212 —
326,793 -
At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 27 RZE_ZTF+AZT+ERARTZE

October 2020, the Board of Directors has resolved
to pay an interim special dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share, totalling approximately
RMB32,204,000.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 24
May 2021, the Board of Directors proposed a final
dividend of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share and a

gem Lt EEEERARRMND
HERRESREBERS.0EMWL &
=4 A R #32,204,0007T ©

R-E_—FAA_+HA#ET Z%
Fet EFegFRERIB
BRE i_Hx150/%TIJJ&5EHﬂ%E|JHx§

final special dividend of HK35.0 cents per ordinary FREBRIS.0BI - GFTHARKE
share totalling approximately RMB294,589,000. 294,589,0007C ° Z EZERKR B T1E
These proposed dividends are not reflected as REMNKRERMEGEMBHREF
dividend payable in the consolidated financial BEfeRBEARAFRHBHE-T_Z

statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation TR NBLEFEZRBRF o
of retained earnings of the Company for the year

ending 28 February 2022.

le saunda holdings Itd. annual report 2021

KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

168




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B S R P RE
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 REYXE
2021 2020
—E--F ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
At beginning of year R E ) 2,360 56,360
Disposal HE - (54,000)
At end of year RE R 2,360 2,360

Investment property is stated at the professional
valuation made on an open market value basis
at 28 February 2021 and 29 February 2020 by
an independent professional valuer, Ravia Global

Appraisal Advisory Limited.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment

REMEDERBYEXGHEMIE
ERIRTEEABRARAREF
T F A+ NBERZE_TF=
A t+hBz rRAMEBEEEMERE
HEYER -

() RGEEBEERBAZRENE

property
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Rental income (Note 6) e WA iE6) 68 81
Direct operating expenses from REEEBAZEEME
investment property that generated EACEERERX
rental income (Note 7) (#2z7) (18) €)
50 72

As at 28 February 2021, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2020: Nil).

R—ZEBE-_—F_A=_+NH"
REBRERTIRARKRLAEE
PREBRYHEET (T F:
/) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

15

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment
property (Continued)

The Group’s investment property is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property through
sale. The Group has measured the deferred
tax relating to the temporary differences of the
investment property using the tax rates and the
tax bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of recovery of this investment property
(Note 19).

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment property at least annually. In the
current year, the valuations are performed by
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuers. At
the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations. The directors determine
a property’s value within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates.

At each financial year end the finance
department:

° Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

° Assesses property valuations movements
when compared to the prior year valuation

report; and

° Holds discussions with the independent
valuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 15
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar investment
properties. Where such information is not
available the directors consider information from
a variety of sources including:

() current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature or recent
prices of similar properties in less
active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows; or

(iliy capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income,
and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.

le saunda holdings Itd. annual report 2021

KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

A o A 25 AR Mk

REYXEE)

(b) fH{EE (&)
AFENRFIEARRERED
LRORENENRE - EE
FRERBUHEEREERES
BRIREE:

(i

(i)

171

TRMEEYMENERE™M S
MIRERBIYWERBRD
ABTIZHNAE #HEX
R EZ R

RIFA A ARIRE R
ZEEFRBSIR K

REYENEAFFET S WK
A BREHEBERA BER
LB A R Ty i 35 & B 9
AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 25 A Mk

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

15 REWX (&)
(b) fH{EE%E (&)
NFEZER
Fair value measurements

at 28 February 2021 using
R-ZZ--%£ZA=t/\H

EATSAFESE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
HEEEZ EZHM EEFT
EETHEHRE THREAAE BEnAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(%5—-F) (5=8) (E=E)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Description i AR TR AR®TR AR TR
Recurring fair value BEHLTEHE
measurements
Investment property: REME:
The PRC h - - 2,360
Fair value measurements
at 29 February 2020 using
RZZE-ZFE-AZTNH
FERATHAFENE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
HREEZ BERHM EEAA
ERMSRE ABRGAE BERAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—) (B5=8) (5=FE)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Description o ARETT ARETT ARETTL
Recurring fair value LEUATEFE
measurements
Investment property: REME:
The PRC H = - 2,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 15 REYWEE)

(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) 1B E % (&)
ARFEEEHEET B
BWAE(E=ZE)
AEENERRERSHELEAR
FTEHSEREEREASBRN
So|MER AHEREEES o

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and HE-_TE-_—4F-_A=Z+NBK

3 during the years ended 28 February 2021 and —ECEF_ATAHLEEE -

29 February 2020. BREEE F_EREZEZ
Rz ER o

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

At beginning of year R ) 2,360 56,360
Disposal HE - (54,000)
At end of year NGRS 2,360 2,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B R M
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 15 REWX(E)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) HEEE(E)
Valuation techniques 1& 18 #% 17
Fair value measurements using significant NIEEAESEFTHREET ISR
unobservable inputs (level 3) mABE(E=E)
The valuations were determined by using the EHHEBENTREEY R EE
direct comparison approach. Sales prices of TE o fE A0 b (2 B Al B B
comparable properties in close proximity are EVEBeREMEANEE
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as BREZEZEBEEFE - 14
property size. The most significant input into this BERFERAEEE 2B AEE A
valuation approach is price per square meter. FEFKERE -
Fair value at
28 February Range of Relationship of
2021 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
Description (RMB’000) technique inputs input to fair value
RZB=-F
ZA=tNH
WAFE BEETIMN BETHH BERTHINBARR
ER (AR®TR) #hELE LN BAENEE NYEHEE
Investment property 2,360 Direct comparison Comparable’s unit  RMB16,523 per The higher the unit selling
— retail shop in approach selling/asking price  square meter price, the higher the fair
the PRC value
RENZE 2,360 ERNLBE ALEEMEN  FTAAARE  EUEREAR-
- URPETER EE/FE 16,5237 ATERR
Fair value at
29 February Range of Relationship of
2020 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
Description (RMB’000) technique inputs input to fair value
R=B-2%F
ZB=thAH
WAFE EZTHN BRI BETINBAER
EH (AR®TR) f#ELE BWAE BAENEE NYEHNEE
Investment property 2,360  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit selling
— retail shop in approach selling/asking price  square meter price, the higher the fair
the PRC value
RENZ 2360 ERULBA AHEAMEN  BYAKARE  EUEERE.
- IRFETER EB/RE 16,5237 ATEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 W¥  HBERRE

Freehold land Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor
and buildings  improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total

XAER iRk

THREF BEIR  HERRE  HARKE hE it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 March 2019 RZB-NE=A-A
Cost KA 151,825 187,744 103,750 2,357 4,199 473,375
Accumulated depreciation 2iENE (45,633) (163,89) (87,934) (19,600) (3,007) (320,069)
Net book amount FEFE 106,692 23,849 15,816 6,757 1,192 153,306
Year ended 29 February 2020 HE-3-%F

ZAZTABLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEEE 105,692 23,849 15,816 6,757 1,192 153,306
Exchange differences EXZE 4314 197 - 101 16 4,628
Additions AE - 14,068 1,043 41 851 16,373
Wiits offidisposal (Votes 231t) and (¢) Wis/ LEWR23EG) (364) (2,083) (7.073) (1479) (374) (11372)
Depreciation i (902) (19,308) @,170) 2,729) (42) (25,348)
Impaiment (Notes (3) & (o) BEWZREY) - (235) (7,616) - - 0974
Closing net ook amount ERERFE 108,740 14,368 - 3062 1443 127,613
At 29 February 2020 R_B-RE-ACTAA
Cost R 165,131 189,071 87,1 , 3599 458,150
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (46,391) (174,703) 7.1 20, 2,156) (330,537)
Net book amount FEFE 108,740 14,368 - 3,062 1,443 127,613
Vear ended 28 February 2021 =
ZAZTNBLEEE

Opening net book amount ENERFE 108,740 14,368 - 3,062 1,443 127,613
Exchange differences EAZE (5,611) (19) - (15) (30) (5,735)
Additions AE - 6,669 - 131 - 6,800
Wit offidisposal (Votes 231t) and (¢) Wi/ LEWR23RE) (30,061) (875) - (17 87) (31,040)
Depreciation g (1,529) (10,899) - (2,095) (264) (14,781)
Impairment (Vote (3) REEe) - (1,437) - - - (1,437)
Closing net book amount FEFHE 71,545 1,147 - 1,066 1,062 81,420
At 28 February 2021 R-B-F-A-T)\A
Cost A 85,782 183,555 26,709 21,348 2,822 320,216
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (14,237) (175,808) (26,709) (20,262) (1,760) (238,796)
Net book amount FAFE 71,545 1,147 - 1,066 1,062 81,420

le saunda holdings Itd.

annual report 2021

KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

175




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

Certain retail stores with operation for more than one year
were making loss during the year and the Group foresees
it is uncertain whether the stores could meet the sales
budget. The Group regards each individual retail store as
a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and carried
out impairment assessment for the retail stores which have
indicator of impairment. As a result, impairment loss of
RMB1,437,000 (2020: RMB2,358,000) and RMB1,191,000
(2020: RMB11,946,000) against leasehold improvements and
right-of-use assets, respectively, were recognised in selling
and distribution expenses of the Group. The estimates of the
recoverable amounts were based on value-in-use calculations
using discounted cash flow projections based on the sales
forecast.

For the year ended 29 February 2020, due to the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic in January 2020 and the related
precautionary and control measures taken place, the
resumption of production of the Group’s factory in Shunde
(“Shunde Factory”) was delayed after the Chinese New Year.
The Group has carried out an impairment assessment of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of the
Shunde Factory. As a result, the carrying amount of the plant
and machinery of the Shunde Factory has written down to its
recoverable amount and the Group recognised an impairment
loss of RMB7,616,000 in general and administrative expenses.
The recoverable amount of the assets of the Shunde Factory
were determined based on their fair value less cost to sale given
all the production of the Shunde Factory were subsequently
ceased in May 2020 after a brief resumption of operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

17 LEASES

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
these leases, except for short term leases, see Note

17 #HE
REmEAgEN AEEEEREE
MOEEREEE - THEAN B

219 to the consolidated financial statements further BERFREPBRRN E2.19 -
information.
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) RGEECEEEBERBANSHE

balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the CEBERBERETRTUATHE

following amounts relating to leases: REERNSHE:
2021 2020
—E--F ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBFT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use rights T A 13,354 20,102
Retail shop premises, warehouses TEEH BERWAE
and offices 21,085 17,867
34,439 37,969
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current mE 16,184 17,635
Non-current ¥R E 10,723 14,724
26,907 32,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 25 A Mk

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

17 HE(HE)
(a) REEEEEBREIANESE

balance sheet (Continued) (&)
2021
—EZ—-F
Retail shop
premises,
Land use warehouses
rights and offices Total
SEEMH -
TiEARE ERRBAE # gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR TR AR TR
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE
Right-of-use assets as at RZEZFTF
1 March 2020 =H—Bz
EREEE 20,102 17,867 37,969
Additions NE - 18,611 18,611
Depreciation charge (Note 7) ¥ & & /A (41 :#7) (758) (13,489) (14,247)
Disposal (Note 23(b)) & (#7 i23(b)) (4,895) - (4,895)
Early termination of leases ~ 1RATZ I EE L - (713) (713)
Impairment (Note 16(a)) A (B 77 16(a) - (1,191) (1,191)
Currency translation [ 5 Z58
difference (1,095) - (1,095)
Right-of-use assets as at R-_EB_—%
28 February 2021 —AZtN\BZ
EREEE 13,354 21,085 34,439
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17

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B s R B T
LEASES (CONTINUED) 17 HE(#)
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated () REECEEEBERBERANESE
balance sheet (Continued) (&)
2020
—TTF
Retail shop
premises,
Land use warehouses
rights and offices Total
TEEH -
THERE BERPRLE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT ARETT
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE
Right-of-use assets as at RZZE—NF
1 March 2019 =A—H2Z
EREEE 20,442 43,427 63,869
Additions NE = 15,701 15,701
Depreciation charge (Note 7) 3T & & F (#/i£7) (806) (24,236) (25,042)
Disposal (Note 23(b)) & (#7 i23(b)) (507) - (507)
Early termination of leases BRI IEHEEG L - (5,079) (5,079)
Impairment (Note 16(a) (& (K1 i#16(z)) - (11,946) (11,946)
Currency translation &5 =58
difference 973 - 973
Right-of-use assets as at RK_T_ZTF
29 February 2020 “AZthBZ
EREEE 20,102 17,867 37,969
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 25 A Mk

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

17 HE(HE)

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) REEEEEBREIANESE
balance sheet (Continued) (&)
2021 2020
—E--F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Lease liabilities HEAE
Lease liabilities as at 1 March R=ZA—BzZHE&E 32,359 46,414
Additions NE 18,255 15,435
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERRE (23,647) (25,976)
Interest for lease liabilities (Note 8) HER B (4 i#8) 1,291 1,785
Early termination of leases RAKIEHEHEERH (1,351) (5,299)
Lease liabilities as at R-—A-+N\B/=—thBz
28/29 February HEBE 26,907 32,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT A R M RE
17 LEASES (CONTINUED) 17 HE (&)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) RGEEERBERANSHE
income statement
The consolidated income statement shows the SCEERXBIITUTEARMA
following amounts relating to leases: EHNSEE:
2021 2020
—B--—-F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETET

Interest expense (included in F B (REA B R A)

finance cost) (Note 8) (#ti#8) 1,291 1,785
Expense relating to short-term leases SEHIKLHAER T GtAHEE

(included in selling and distribution K9 R M — K RITH

expenses and general and Ax)

administrative expenses) 24,976 34,907
Expense relating to leases of low-value il KRB RAGHELHE

assets that are not shown above as AXMEEEHEEEE

short-term leases (included in seling (Gt ASHE R D #HFA L)

and distribution expenses) 1 1
Expense relating to variable lease REAHERBENEHEE

payments not included in lease FHRAZGIABEER D H

liabilities (included in selling and B S M — MR RATER )

distribution expenses and general and

administrative expenses) 68,825 83,090
For the year ended 28 February 2021, the BE-_T-—F-_A=Z+N\BL
total cash outflow for leases amounted to FE-HERERMEHBRERA
RMB117,449,000 (2020: RMB143,974,000). R#117,449,000 T (ZE -4 :

A R #143,974,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

The group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group’s right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as a lessee mainly arise from lease of
various retail shop premises, warehouses and
offices with terms of 6 months to 10 years but
may have extension options as described in (e)
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from a
store. For individual stores, up to 59% of lease
payments are on the basis of variable payment
terms with percentages ranging from 5% to
28% of sales. Variable payment terms are used
for a variety of reasons, including minimising
the fixed costs base for newly established
stores. Variable lease payments that depend
on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the
Group with such variable lease contracts would
increase total lease payments by approximately
RMB6,883,000 (2020: RMB8,309,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

17

(e) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of property and equipment leases
across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessor.

(f)

Residual value guarantees

No residual value guarantees in relation to
equipment leases is provided.

18 SUBSIDIARIES

18

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group at 28 February 2021 which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affect the results or form
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group:

Place of
incorporation and

Particular of issued
share capital and

A o A 25 AR Mk

HE ()

(e) EHRARILEER
AEENFZVELRBRE
VEEERREILEEZRE - Z
SEREBERERATEASKE
XA EEZREEAE -
REAFAFHRENRRIEEZR
ERIRASETE  MAERL
HARAIITE o

R EEE K
ERREHEHERENREEE
& ©

(f)

Bff B8 A =
BEZAN-_E-_—F-_A=-+/\H
HAEEXEEEEATERBEBRAN
EEFEEMNTER > NETENRB
/NCIR NN

Principal activities/ 2021 and 2020

Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ERALEER ERTRAR TEER/ ZBZ-F)
MEAT AR EAER BB ES EXuH “ROREfERSR
Blooming on Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
REBRRF BE 2REREEIET KEWE/
BREERA ERR i
Brightly Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
BRREARRAA NN 2REREEIET KENE/
BAREARA ERR i
Grandmark Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
EAEEERAA BA 1REREEIET RERR/
AREARA LR B
Great Sino Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares  Provision of management 100%

liability company

&8
BREARH
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of HK$1 each

services and
investment holding/
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A o A 25 A Mk

18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation and

18 B 2R (&)

Particular of issued

share capital and Principal activities/ 2021 and 2020

Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
MR IEER BRITRER TEER/ ZEZ-%R
MEARER EAER BB ES EXxuy ZECERERNER
Le Saunda (B.V.I.) Limited British Virgin Islands, 31,500 ordinary shares  Investment holding/ 100%
(Note (a)) limited liability of US$1 each Hong Kong
(@) company
KERLHS 31,500k BREBIZET RERK/
BEREEAR EBK B
Le Saunda Calcado, Limitada Macau, limited liability ~ MOP200,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company Macau
K 200,000 ¢ REZE/
BEREEAR 2
Le Saunda China Investment Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of  Investment holding/ 100%
Limited liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
RBEAREREARAR 5 00RERABIET REAZR/
BREERA ERR B
Le Saunda Licensing Limited Bahamas, limited liability 5,000 ordinary shares of Holding and licensing 100%
company US$1 each of trade-marks and
names/
Hong Kong
NEEBRARRAA" EREHS - 5000k EREEIZET BAERKLEFLEE
BREERA ERR ERERERE/
B
Le Saunda Management Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services/
Hong Kong
RBHAERERAA BE 2REREEIET REERRE/
BEREEAR ERR B
Le Saunda Real Estate Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
KBHMHERRRA BE 2REREEIET RERR,/
BREERA ERR BB
L.S. Retailing Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Retailing of shoes/ 100%

liability company

le saunda holdings Itd.
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Place of

18 B 2R (&)

Particular of issued

incorporation and

share capital and

Principal activities/

2021 and 2020

Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
MR IEER BRITRER TEER/ ZEZ-%R
MEARER EAER BHES EEBE ZECERERNER
Maior Limited Hong Kong, limited 1,000 ordinary shares of Trading of shoes and 100%
liability company HK$2,000 each investment holding/
Hong Kong
BECHERERAA % 10008 BHRAB2000 FEZHRRERR/
AREARAA ALERER B
Master Benefit Limited Hong Kong, limited 3,000,000 ordinary Investment holding/ 100%
liability company shares of HK$1 each ~ Hong Kong
EEERAA Bk 30000008 EREE HREREK/
EREEAR 1ETERK B
Super Billion Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of  Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
HEEEERAA A 00REREBIEL  HENE/
BEREARRA ERR t
Trend Door Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
BAERRA BE 2REREEIET RERR/
BEREAATA ERR B
Trend Light Trading Company Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
Limited liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
REESHBRAA BA 2REREEIET RERR/
BEREARTA ERR B
HEEZRE)ERAR The PRC, limited liability US$100,000 Wholesales and trading 100%
company of shoes/
the PRC
hE 100,000 ¢ REHERES/
AREARA i
MEERE(RE)ERAR The PR, limited liability HK$53,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE 53,000,000% Tt KETE/
AREARA th
MEEBS(RINERAR The PRC, limited liability - HK$10,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE 10,000,000 ¢ KETE/
BREAATA m
ErBE(LB)BRAT The PRC, limited liability US$6,500,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE 6,500,000% ¢ RETE/
AREARA i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Place of

18 MIB AT (&)

Particular of issued

incorporation and

share capital and

Principal activities/

2021 and 2020

Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ERRIBER BRTRAR TEER/ —EC-fR
WEARARE EAER ERES BEHY ECEEfGRS
REERELR)ERAR The PRC, limited liability US$2,200,000 Retalling of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
BE 2,200,000 T RETE/
BREEAR i
MRESR2R)EBRATF The PRC, limited liabilty US$800,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
e 800,000% ¢ FETE
BEREARTA i
E&EEEMMBRAR The PRC, limited liability RMB27,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 66.67%
company the PRC
HE AR¥27000000 HETE
BREFATF B
BLUTIEEERNGEES The PRC, limited liability US$3,800,000 Inactive/ 100%
BRAF company the PRC
hE 3,800,000% T RERETED/
BEREEAH i
BLUTEEEREE % The PRC, limited liability US$1,050,000 Inactive/ 100%
BRAF company the PRC
e 1,050,000% T¢ RELEES,/
BEREARTE i
BLUTEEERRES The PRC, limited liability US$1,500,000 Inactive/ 100%
BRAR company the PRC
hE - 1,500,000% 7 REEETES,/
BREFATA th
BLUTEEEERFHE The PRC, limited liability US$200,000 Inactive/ 100%
REERAA company the PRC
th - 200,000% 7T REEETEE/
BEREEAH i
Note: Hiat -
(@) Le Saunda (B.V.l) Limited is held directly by the Company. All (@)  Le Saunda (B.V.l) Limited f§ AN A 7] B # F

B MABEEMHMBARERMEIFHE

other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

* O EHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the tax assets against the tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The following amounts, determined after

A o A 25 AR Mk

19 ELEFEHE
EEAERMNABELHASHAE
EEEXEMERBEEGBERE - ME
FEFTS RS KRR — R A5 R - B A]
REEFMSRAEERARMALRE -
TIESREEERBERANIENS

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated BEETAEE ALY
balance sheet:

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHEEE 29,619 55,332
Deferred income tax liabilities EXEMEHIEBEAE (24,197) (24,757)
5,422 30,575

Deferred income taxation is calculated in full on
temporary differences under the liability method

using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 8 o

by the balance sheet date.

EXEMGHRERBAEBE IR EERK
ENEEHCEEAARBEENH

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBFTT

At beginning of year R E ) 30,575 26,433
(Charged)/credited to consolidated income (R),/GtAGZABEER

statement (Note 12) (Hiit12) (24,987) 4,134

Exchange realignment PEE = 78 B (166) 8

At end of year R E K 5,422 30,575
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

4 =
19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19 EFfEFiE (H&)
The movement on deferred income tax assets and BEERASHEEERBBENES N
liabilities are as follows: T
Withholding tax
on dividend for
Unrealised profits on Revaluation of undistributed profits
inventories Tax losses investment property (Notg) Others Total
FARBRNREENE
FEREEEA REEE RENEEHR 2 £ @it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--f  “B-%F ZgR--F FCRF CBC-F CRCRF CBI-F “BC%EF CgRC-F CFCFF ZBI-F 0 CRC0RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT AR®Tr  ARETR ARMTR ARETR  AR%Tn  ARETR ARMTR ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR
At beginning of year REA) 42,941 46,247 5,009 4,753 (8,353) (9.717) (16,404) (18,152) 7376 3,302 30,575 26,433
(Charged/credited to consolidated &4 B &%
income statement () /A 17,836) (3,681) (4924) - - 1987 (45) 1,748 (2,182) 4130 (24,987) 4134
Exchange realignment EXH% (686) 381 (85) 256 605 (573) - - - 56) (166) 8
Atend of year RER 24,425 Q.7 - 5,009 (7,748) (8,353) (16,449) (16,404) 5,104 7376 5,422 30575
Note: Kt -

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends remitted by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. All dividends coming from
the profits generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008
shall be subject to this withholding income tax. The Group did
not accrue withholding income tax for a portion of the earnings of
RMB300,650,000 (2020: RMB300,650,000) of its PRC subsidiaries
because the Group does not have a plan to distribute these earnings
from its PRC subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 28 February 2021, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of approximately RMB134,221,000 (2020:
RMB121,577,000) to be carried forward against future taxable income.
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T (ZZE =T F : AR%300,650,0007T) °
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED)
The expiry of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

20

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

19 3 5 F 1§ Bt H ()

AERTRBRZIBMAWT

2021 2020
—E--F —ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Tax losses without expiry date EIHBAZMIEBESE 110,938 100,687
Tax losses expiring in 5 years TENEmIHIBEE 23,283 20,890
134,221 121,577

INVENTORIES 20 78
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFIT
Raw materials R 3,733 12,193
Work in progress F 2K - 7,831
Finished goods 2R 189,930 290,098
193,663 310,122
Less: Provision for impairment of inventories & : 17 &8 (B # & (41,067) (37,029)
152,596 273,093

le saunda holdings Itd.

annual report 2021

KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

189




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21 EFREWERERHEMEKREER

AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS RERFEMNRE

2021 2020

—E--F ZTZEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Trade receivables 2 2 EWERIE 60,877 58,258
Less: loss allowance o BEERE (5,924) (7,709)
54,953 50,549

Other receivables H b fE UL BR 1B 2,376 2,980
57,329 53,529

Deposits ®me 10,399 13,149
Prepayments B RIB 2,954 4,212
Value added tax receivables JiE Ui 3 B A% Hi 1R 28,419 29,132
99,101 100,022

Presented as non-current assets E2IAEERDEE 1,485 3,421
Presented as current assets 2IARRBEE 97,616 96,601
99,101 100,022

AEERBERS ZHFFHEKA
—RRANFEFZRLI0E60RA UM -
B RWAREA R A EIKIREZ K
HEAEAFERE BRAKH
EPRZ MESZRUKREYEE
EREBERBER -

The Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible within 30
to 60 days. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values. There is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group has a large number of
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21 ESEWEER E{EKEER
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS BRERBENANREE)
(CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, and net of provision,
based on invoice date is as follows:

BEHRKR BREREZEREEKR
ZIREREZAMOFTOT

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥® TR ARET T
Current to 30 days BIER =30k 48,420 39,905
31 to 60 days 31K £60K 3,641 7,037
61 to 90 days 61K 290K 1,661 2,967
Over 90 days #E BI0K 1,231 640
54,953 50,549

Trade receivables are denominated in the following B REWERIBAT & ¥ 58 -

currencies:

2021 2020
—B-—F “T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
RMB AR# 54,863 50,502
HK$ BT 81 44
MOP BFITT 9 3
54,953 50,549
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowance recognised as
at 28 February 2021 is RMB5,924,000 (2020:
RMB7,709,000). Information about the impairment
of trade receivables and group’s exposure to credit 7,709,0007T) - BN E HEWIERIE 2
risk can be found in Note 3.1(b) to the consolidated EBARAEBE 2 EZFERR  FEH
financial statements. tRE B IS R M EES.1(0) ©

BEZRWREREERRER
B2EREMNREGE

AEERBEBHBEREERFIR
2L AtERBEEEE  #
BREESREUEEUNEEGEED
EEHEREE R _—F—
AZ+N\A BRTITBBEBEBAR
#5024 000 (T T F: ARK

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 22 RERBITEBRECERBITE

BANK DEPOSIT A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBFT
Cash at bank and on hand RITAEEFHRE 287,982 325,164
Bank deposits with initial term no more HIMR DR = {6 A 19
than three months (Note (a)) RITFR(H Z(8) 454,400 147,691
Bank deposits with initial term over HR e =18 A6
three months (Note (b)) RITIF KA iE (b)) 12,500 35,700
Cash and bank balances Be RRITER 754,882 508,555
Pledged bank deposit BEEFRITER 661 719
755,543 509,274
Less: Term deposits with initial term over - BiR | = A A 7
three months (Note (b)) T HTE R (KT 5 (b)) (12,500) (35,700)
Pledged bank deposit EEMIEITER
(Note (c)) (Bt () (661) (719)
Cash and cash equivalents ReKERBLER 742,382 472,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

H AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED

BANK DEPOSIT (CONTINUED)

The cash and bank balances are denominated in the
following currencies:

A o A 25 AR Mk

BERBITEHRECERRITE
ENE-D

ReRPITHEBRUATINE KR :

2021 2020

—E--F ZTZEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥® T ARET T

RMB AR 605,267 364,120
US$ E 139,291 124,705
HK$ B TT 8,410 17,829
Other currencies HiE® 2,575 2,620
755,543 509,274

Notes:

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits and
term deposits was 1.57% (2020: 1.91%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 to 92 days (2020: 29
to 91 days).

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with initial term
over three months was 1.93% (2020: 1.92%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity of 181 days (2020: 182 to 183 days).

Bank deposit of RMB661,000 (2020: RMB719,000) has been
pledged as rental deposits for a subsidiary of the Company.

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposit was 1.13%
per annum (2020: 1.94%).

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

Wit :

@) RHRTEAREHETRNETHRNERS
BF157% (ZT=ZFF 1.91%) : % FF
FEBAN FrTERA(ZF2 -2 F: 205
91R) -

by HEROB=-"MEMANTEHETRANERNXA
FF1983% (ZZE T F:1.92%) : 25T
FEHE AIBIB(ZE-ZF : 182F183
B)-

) HRIAERARKE661,0000 (=T =_FF:
A R#719,00070) B E I EAR QA A —
WEARMBEERS -

FERBROTEFNERMNEL T F113%
(ZEZTF:1.94%)

@ AEBUAREAERNHESRETES
TR ER BRI - HBREAA RS
85 7 10 4677 8 51 5 T B L o B S 51 05 7B
s 5o B KA AR A6 0 SN S B3R B R AR ) -

ERERRTEHIEEEEERF
A& -

B 3
]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B i B e

23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 ZEBEEREXRMFT
STATEMENTS
(@) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax @ BFFERATEMN(EE)HEK

to net cash generated from operations: BEBESE VIS EREYER

2021 2020
“E--F “TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Cash flow from operating activities ReLBITHHERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETGE B AR/ (B]) 168,073 (21,274)
Adjustments for: FE:
Exchange difference (Note 6) [ 5 =% (M i26) (9,392) 7,457
Depreciation of property, plant and MmE BERBENE
equipment (Note 16) (Hit16) 14,781 25,348
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
(Note 17) (H1it17) 14,247 25,042
(Gain)/loss on write off/disposal of plant W/ LERERSE
and equipment (Note (c)) (=) BRA ) (5,072) 8,869
Gain on early termination of leases RAKIEHEAN K=
(Note 17) (H1i£17) (638) (220)
Gain on disposal of property, right-of-use HENE FREEER
assets and investment property (Note 6) BB EWE (f 76 (174,749) (5,643)
(Write-back of impairment)/impairment BSRYWRECRE
losses on trade receivables, net B,/ REBE
(Note 3.1(b)) HE(H23.1(0) (1,220) 2,255
Impairment losses on inventories, net REREEBR 38 7,119 14,114
Impairment losses on property, plant and MmE BERBERE
equipment (Note 16) BB F16) 1,437 9,974
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets CREEEREESSE
(Note 17) (W it17) 1,191 11,046
Finance income, net (Note 8) FHBRA - FE
(H15%8) (4,967) (6,890)
10,810 70,978
Changes in working capital: HEESE
— Inventories -GFE 112,913 39,007
— Trade and other receivables - BORWERREM
e RE (2,648) 19,198
— Deposits and prepayments - RERBHAFE 4,433 3,878
— Trade payables and other payables - BPENERBEREMD
R 8,124 (31,924
Net cash generated from operations REXBEEZREFE 133,632 101,137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 HRERERERMET(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of disposal of property, right-of- b)) HEWE - THRAEEENKE
use assets and investment property: ) 3 ER
2021 2020
—B-—-F “T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Proceeds from disposal HE K IA 212,091 70,500
Net book amount of investment BREWMEREFE
property - (54,000)
Net book amount of property, plant and #1% - # e RZEEREE
equipment F1E (30,061) (364)
Net book amount of right-of-use assets £ i & & R H ¥ & (4,895) (507)
Relevant transaction expenses HEXSEHR (2,386) (9,986)

Gain on disposal of property, right-of-  HEW%E - FHAEEER

use assets and investment property REMER = 174,749 5,643
(©) Reconciliation of write off/disposal of plant and C) MsE HEMERRBEYE:
equipment:
2021 2020
—E--F ZTZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TT

Proceeds from disposal & FE 6,051 2,139
Net book amount REFE (979) (11,008)

Gain/(loss) on write off/disposal of plant ~ #fl $8 /1 & # 28 & 5%
and equipment Wz /(& 18) 5,072 (8,869)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B i B e

24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 BESEMNERE HAENSERER

CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHNEE
2021 2020
—B-—-F “T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Trade payables B2 EMNRIE 20,350 11,435
Other payables H b & - BR 18 52,216 55,564
Value added tax payables FER B ER A 12,831 9,785
Contract liabilities (Note) eHaEWZ) 10,146 8,557
95,543 85,341

The credit periods granted by suppliers are generally
ranged from 7 to 60 days. The ageing analysis of the

HERERZEEN—RR7TEOX -
BEHKR BEHERNEEZIERZ

trade creditors at the end of the reporting period, EEHESFTWT
based on invoice date is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Current to 30 days BIER 30K 18,455 7,993
31 to 60 days 31T RE60K 1,801 2,110
61 to 90 days 1R E90K - 449
91 to 120 days 1R 2120k - 367
Over 120 days @120k 94 516
20,350 11,435
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S A
24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 BESEMNERE HAENSERER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) SHEBEE)
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate BoEMNEBEREAATLERS
their fair values and are denominated in the following A0 LA TR %) & & 1) BR -
currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETRT

RMB AR 20,340 11,349
Us$ ETT 9 75
EUR BT 1 6
HK$ BT - 5
20,350 11,435
Note: it -
The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in TRBARTEAREHERN K AL TBERF
the current reporting period relates to contract liabilities balance at VHEBEANAEBEHNEZE -

the beginning of the year.

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBF T
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract FHNENEEREEARERR
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year 691 3,116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B R M
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 B
2021 2020
—E--F —Z-TF
Number of Share Number of Share
ordinary capital ordinary capital
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
R & R
EERHE Taxr ETAKRHE FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10  EZ @010 T
Authorised: ETERA
At the beginning of year and ~ FHREXK
at the end of year 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
2021 2020
—E--F “Z-%F
Number of Share Number of Share
ordinary capital ordinary capital
shares RMB’000 shares RMB’000
R & e
EERBE AR®TR LTERHE ARETRT
Issued and fully paid: BETRBRRA:
At the beginning of year and ~ FHRFE X
at the end of year 705,895,060 59,979 705,895,060 59,979
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTIONS

At a special general meeting of the Company held
on 22 July 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) * pursuant to which the directors may
grant options to eligible persons (as defined under
the Scheme) to subscribe for shares in the Company
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. The
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of shareholders’ approval. The aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
options schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

Each share option under the Scheme entitles the
holder to subscribe for one share of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a price, which is to be determined
by the Board of Directors provided always that it shall
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange for the date of offer of grant
(which is deemed to be the date of grant if the offer
for the grant of an option is accepted by the eligible
person), which must be a business day; and (i) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of grant.

A o A 25 AR Mk

26 BRE

KRRIRZEE-F+tHA-+=-HE
THRERFIAE L ARAFARRE
BERKMBRESTEI(ETE)) &
- EFAMEERAT(ERRE
ENERTHERE ZZFEATUREG
EERRBART D o 518 7] &%
THEREMIROBETEESR
BERMEZEBARARFEEHETRAD
10% c AITEET Sk A A A FE [ H
MR ETE 2 HER TFTEERIT
FHEREMBITOROKDEE  ~5
BBARTTREBITRAEN3I0% °

At EI TR B DB TR A AR -
PHEZSEETNERRAE —RAE
NAEREEI0E TG - HR
EZBEBANOR (R TEHGEE
RATEREREERESRTEE
BRBARERB)EARMER A
BERERMAIOKGE  RHERT
BREEAMAESXBERMHERR
FMEBERERNFHRTERE
Km& e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M RE

26 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 26 BRREE)
Movements in the number of share options WMARITERERZESE & E M
outstanding and their related weighted average BEHITEEESHOT

exercise prices are as follows:

2021 2020
“B--F i 3
Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of share price per of share
share options share options
sRIEH BRYH
TEE BREXE TEE  BREHA
(HK$) (thousands) (HK$)  (thousands)
B T BT T4
At beginning of year and FNRER
at end of year 2.185 1,625 2.185 1,625
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to AEBUTEEIFEIHETEAUERE
repurchase or settle the options in cash. BhO EEBRKRE-
Number Number
(Adjusted) of share (Adjusted) of share
Exercise options as at Exercise  options as at
price per 28 February price per 29 February
share 2021 share 2020
—g--F “T-%F
(A%) —A=tNH (_%Jﬁﬁé) ZRZ+hH
BROMEE BREZE BSRIFEE EREHA
(HK$) (thousands) (HK$)  (thousands)
BT T4 BT T
Expiry date at: B 8A
9 July 2022 (Note (a)) ZEZZFEANA
(W ita) 2.185 1,625 2185 1,625
Note: B it
(a) Become exercisable from a range of dates between 10 July (a) ATREAE—NFLATHEBEE-Z
2014 and 10 July 2016 and expiring on the 10th anniversary FEATBHBETUAITE  EREEAR HH
from date of grants of 10 July 2012. T —FtA+HEFRIOAFZHE
R o
For the year ended 28 February 2021, no amount HE-_Z-_—F-_A=+/\HLEFE
was recognised and included in “employee benefit WEEREERERZLFTAIREERF
expenses” (2020: Nil). AXJAN(ZZE_ZF:8|)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

27 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
in Hong Kong based on employee pensionable
remuneration and length of service.

The amounts, included in trade and other payables
(Note 24), recognised in the balance sheet are

27

BRABANEE

AEBEREBREEBERNT M LRSS F
RN EBHETRERMBAREEE -

ERANEERER

AAAE ZEN

FRELEMENKRER 22902

determined as follows: ZEANT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Present value of defined benefit obligations ~ R E&HETRE 55 123
Liability in the consolidated balance sheet R EERABRNWAR 55 123
The movement in the present value of defined benefit FAN - ATRMNEARENEZH N
obligations over the year is as follows: T
2021 2020
—E--F —ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
At beginning of year F1 123 154
Interest cost /RSN 1 1
Current service cost 3 BR 7% A AR 2 4
Payment 1 (21) (67)
Actuarial (gains)/losses RECER), /BB (44) 23
Exchange difference fEH =% (6) 8
At end of year FiR 55 123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B 5 R B
27 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 27 REKBHEMEE)
(CONTINUED)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income REEERRERNSEHLT
statement are as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Interest cost included in staff costs FABIRAZFE 1 1
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as FTENBREBRRERBT:
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—& “E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Discount rate IR = 1.22% 0.93%
Future salary increase rate 7R 2R Fr B 3 0 b = 2.00% 3.00%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

28 RESERVES 28 %
Employee
Capital Exchange Share-based
Share  redemption translation Statutory ~ Contributed Retained Capital ~ Revaluation compensation Other
premium reserve reserve reserves surplus earnings reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
(Note (3))
g% HE EaRE

ReEE  WERE  ARER  REERE SRR REEW  RAER  EREE  HEER  RER it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR®TR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR

At 1 March 2020 W-3-3%=f-8 88,962 145 (16,977) 47,145 3,076 44,076 4812 - 20,101 92 891,452
Comprehensive income 2AHA

Proft for the year ERH - - - - - 106,154 - - - - 106,154
Other comprehensive income/[oss) HhamhN/(BB)

Currency ransation differences EXZE - - (28,750) - - - - - - - (28,750

Retirement beneft obigation RIEHRE - - - - - - - - - [ U
Transaction vith onners BEEAZRS

Diidncs e - - - - - - - - -
At 28 February 2021 R=F=-E-F=tA 88,062 145 (45,721) 47,145 3,076 819,028 4812 - 20,101 136 937,698
Represening: fx:
2021 proposed dividends Ro-ERERE 204,569
Others i 643,109

937,698

le saunda holdings Itd. annual report 2021
HRBATHERBR DA F3R 2021

203




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

28 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28 fE¥E (&)

Employee
Capital Exchange Share-based
Share redemption translation Statutory Contributed Retaingd Capital Revaluation  compensation Other
premium TEServe TEServe Teserves surplus earmings Teserve TEServe TEserve TEsere Total
(Note )
U HE ESKh
Rk BORE hERE HERE LIV ] REEH FUs EhRE HHRE EbiE it
(g
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RAMBI000 RAMBI000
NRETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETr  ARETr  ARETr ARETr AREFR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 March 2019 R-2-nE2A-A 88982 145 [40,691) 47,145 27546 763525 4812 11,070 20,101 115 1,112750
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year ENER - - - - = (30519 - - - - (30519
Other comprehensive income{oss) Hh2EhN/(BB)
Currency transation differences EXZE - - 28,714 - - - - - - - 28,714
Retirement beneft obigation RIFEHAR - - - - - = = = = (4] )
Transfer of gan on cisposal of nvestment~ EBRENZATELENE
property at fair value: - - - - - 11,070 - (11,070) - - -
Transaction with owners BEEAZRS
Dividends && = - - - (214410) - - - - - (214,470)
At 29 February 2020 it = 83,982 145 (16977) 41,145 3078 T44,076 4812 - 2,101 9 891,452
Representing: fx:
2020 proposed diidend “EoRERARS =
Others it 891,452
891,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 25 AR Mk

28 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28 f#& (&)

Note: K i#

(@)  Statutory reserves represent enterprise expansion and (@) ZETEREEERPEKYRELHHEBRG
general reserve funds set up by subsidiaries established FMEVUHNCETRER —RHEHEES - &
and operated in the PRC. As stipulated by regulation in the RERREMEIE B AR ZBRIETEHE
PRC, the subsidiaries are required to appropriate to statutory . eEALPRIEPH e LA ER
reserves an amount of not less than 5% or 10% of the amount 5 B B A B A B BT 18 FR 12 % R B95% Bk
of profit after income tax of respective the PRC subsidiaries, 10% - HEERERBEBERBEMBE R
calculated based on the PRC accounting standards. Should R A B950% @ M B AR EEBE
the accumulated total of the statutory reserves reach 50% of HEZ - REEBETRRE  —REBHE
the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries SR AEEMBEIIEINEBRE QRN
will not be required to make any further appropriation. Pursuant BR - MR ERES BB EERTEMN
to relevant the PRC regulations, the general reserve fund may BN A B A EE EE RS 0 AR BE B B A B HY
be used to make up losses or to increase the capital of the BN o
corresponding subsidiaries whilst the enterprise expansion
fund may be used to expand the corresponding subsidiaries’
production operations or to increase the capital of the
corresponding subsidiaries.

29 COMMITMENTS 29 &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEREIE
2021 2020
—B--F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Contracted but not provided for, BT ERBEN

in respect of — purchase of BERAE - EHBEER

property, plant and equipment M - R RERE - 656

le saunda holdings Itd.

annual report 2021
HRBATHERBR DA F3R 2021

205




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i BB A B i
29 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 29 EYE (A
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REMHEARE

The Group, as lessor, had future aggregate
minimum rental receivables under non-

AEBEESHEAREA A
HAE XA WIA R K &K

cancelable operating leases as follows: He@EBIOT:
2021 2020
—E--F —ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Land and buildings: THRETF:

Not later than one year PR—F - 87

Later than one year and not later than BB —FETBBAF
five years - 40
- 127

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30 MEITAEDE

2021 2020
—E--F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT

Financial assets at amortised cost DHEE R AR

Trade and other receivables BHEMIRIE R

H it e s AR 1R 57,329 53,529
Deposits Ee 10,399 13,149
Pledged bank deposits BIIFIRITER 661 719
Cash and bank balances Be KBTS 754,882 508,555
823,271 575,952

Financial liabilities at amortised cost Sl -t TSl

Trade and other payables BEHEMNERIE K

H it & A BRI 71,898 66,056
Lease liabilities ME&E 26,907 32,359
98,805 98,415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT A R M RE
31 BANKING FACILITIES AND GUARANTEES 31 RITAERER
The banking facilities made available to subsidiaries AIRAEBEWNEB QRSB ARITE
of the Group are as follows: BREEWNT:
2021 2020
—gE-—& —EC-TF
Available Facilities Available Facilities
facilities utilised facilities utilised
nAEE CHRAEE HBEE CEHAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥BTR AREBTT ARETIT
Banking facilities granted  [7] 7 £ [ fft /&

to subsidiaries of the NEIE-Junl:0)

Group RITREREE 88,467 661 135,851 780
As at 28 February 2021, no amount of facilities R-EBE_—F_A-_+N\HA A&
were utilised for commercial letters of credit (2020: PAMEEEABEEAMRCE
RMB86,000). RMB661,000 (2020: RMB694,000) of T4 AR ¥86,000L) EFAH A
the facilities were utilised for bank guarantee. R #661,000(ZE T F - ARK

694,000 C) MR B RE/E BIRTTHER ©
32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEEATHXRS
(a) Related parties (a) BRAEAL

R—ZZE-_—F-_A=-_+N\AB"
Stable Gain Holdings Limited ¥
BEARAES1.94% (ZE T F:
31.94%) kAR RE—K
AR ©

As at 28 February 2021, Stable Gain Holdings
Limited held 31.94% (2020: 31.94%) equity
interest in the Company as the single largest
shareholder.

FEEEEMSE
EER/AKEZEIREEE -

(b) Key management compensation (b)
The directors are considered key management

of the Group.

2021 2020
—E--F ZETETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T

Salaries and other short-term employee & M H40 = Hi{E 88 F
benefits 5,398 6,529

Employer’s contributions to retirement  {& £ Rk & 5t &I &

scheme 31 50
5,429 6,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 25 A Mk

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE

33 FALARNEERBEREME

COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company ARREERER
As at As at
28 February 29 February
2021 2020
iy i
—B-—F —T_TF
ZA=+NB Z—A=t+hBH
RMB’OOP RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Interests in subsidiaries RITB DR 2
a _.__0166% ___ 418,290
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H i JE U IR 1B 212 226
Cash and bank balances R ® M IRTITH 1,467 2,030
.. 1679 _: 2,256
Total assets BEE 578,372 420,546
Equity = )
Capital and reserves attributable ARAIEEFHEA
to the owners of the Company EIERAR R
Share capital P& 59,979 59,979
Reserves & (b) 517,308 359,577
Total equity B _ 577,287 419,556
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities mEEE
Accruals &R 1,085 990
Total liabilities BE R 1085 < 990
Total equity and liabilities Bzl BERE 578,372 420,546

ARRlcEERBERER-F
A A-THHAEEEEH
B THRINAETRERERE °

The balance sheet of the Company was
approved by the Board of Director on 24 May
2021 and was signed on its behalf.

James Ngai Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
152 7 & "mEy

Chairman Director

FE EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

383 ALREERBREME B
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(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ZLOFEEES
Employee
Capital Exchange share-hased
Share redemption translation  Contributed Retained compensation
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings reserve Total
- NE EERH
KB EE BERE RERE E-ON:S REER BHEE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETTR ARETR ARETR
At 1 March 2020 RZZ=%%=A-A 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 268,975 20,101 359,577
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profitfor the year FREH - - - - 188,933 - 186,033
Transaction with owners HEEAZRS
Dividend RE - - - - (31,202) - (31,202)
At 28 February 2021 RZE--F-A=t/\A 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 426,706 20,101 517,308
Representing: f%:
2021 proposed dividends ~ ~B--FRERE 294,589
Others £t 202,719
517,308
Employee
Capital Exchange share-based
Share redemption translation Contributed Retained  compensation
premium reserve reserve surplus eanings reserve Total
BX SNE EERH
RiAEE BEGE BhEGk BARS REEH e @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 March 2019 R=E-NE=A-H 88,982 145 (30,475) 226,319 29,882 20,101 334,954
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year ERiah - - - - 239,093 - 239,093
Transaction with owners BEEAZRS
Dividends K = - - (214,470) - - (214,470)
At 29 February 2020 RZSZFF-A-TNA 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 268975 20,101 359,577
Representing: fik:
2020 proposed dividend ZEITERERE -
Others i 359,677
369,677




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A B B

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

AEBZHEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“E--fF ZF-TF ZF-nF ZT-)\F ZT—+F
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Revenue Wz 594,217 736,387 908,784 1,130,560 1,365,545
Operating profit/(loss) LR/ (B1R) 163,106 (28,164) (24,947) 85,530 124,088
Finance income, net BN - FE 4,967 6,890 11,508 8,239 4,006
Share of profit of a Joint Venture Fr{h4& & 3 % 7 - — — 74 423
Profit/(loss) before income tax & B8 B Al % A/
(B#8) 168,073 (21,274) (13,439) 93,843 128,517
Income tax expense FiEfiz (61,922) (9,046) (13,889) (33,600) (52,113)
Profit/(loss) for the years FRaF/ (B1) 106,151 (30,320) (27,328) 60,243 76,404
Profit/(loss) attributable to: P15/ (B8) :
— owners of the Company — ADEER
HFEA 106,154 (30,519) (28,032) 59,676 74,977
— non-controlling interest — FERER ) 199 704 567 1,427
106,151 (30,320) (27,328) 60,243 76,404
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AR S 5

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP
AEBEEREAER
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- ~“T-FF —“T-NFE —ZT-\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AR®Tr ARETRT ARETRT ARETR

Investment properties, property, X &E#E - ¥

plant and equipment and BERZBR

land use rights T e R 83,780 129,973 230,108 244,224 258,683
Right-of-use assets FREEE 34,439 37,969 — = —
Interest in Joint Venture ResatkzER - - - - 35,156
Long-term deposits and REBEERAMNR

prepayments B 1,485 3,421 4,632 5,898 7,105

Interest in and amount due from R At HE B 15 &
an available-for-sale financial EZERNER

assets HIB - - - - -
Deferred income tax assets EXEMEHBEE 29,619 55,332 54,302 53,538 55,283
Net current assets RYEEFE 893,544 774,490 924,993 969,207 998,622
1,042,867 1,001,185 1,214,035 1,272,867 1,354,849

Total equity BRER 1,007,947 961,704 1,186,166 1,242,781 1,320,455
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ BEEFEHIEAE 24,197 24,757 27,869 30,086 34,394
Lease liabilities HEEE 10,723 14,724 - — -

1,042,867 1,001,185 1,214,035 1,272,867 1,354,849

le saunda holdings Itd. annual report 2021

KBAAERERAA  FIR 2021

211




INVESTMENT PROPERTY
BREWH

Location Type Tenure
b B ]| HAME
(@ Shop Nos. 5 & 6, Shop Medium lease

215-217 Qi Sha Road,

Block 1, Hao Jing Hua Yuan,

West District, Shi Qi Zhen, Zhongshan,

Guangdong Province,

People’s Republic of China

I A R A AE EE H B 7E 4V
BREFILT

7 [ U 2 $215-217 5%

S RAEE —1E5N65%
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XBHEAERABARALF

D R
caringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
S RisHeR

lesaunda.com.hk
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